	//7595
ORDINANCE No.	111010

oh Law Department

# The City of Seattle--Legi



In roduced: APR 3 1935	by: V&EKS
ital medi	To: EMANE RUSEL MENCESTIL PERSON
of arred:	To: (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)
Referred:	To:
Reported: App 1 n 位势	Second Reading:
Third Reading:	\$1gne
Presented to: Mayor:	Approved:
Returned to City Clerk:	Published:
Vetced by Mayor:	reto Published:
Passed over Veto:	Voto Sustained:

Henorable	President:				
Your Com	mittee on _	Finance	Budget	Mana	jemen e
report ma	f AAR HUAAC .	d the withi considered	n Council I the same	Bill No. and rest	NUCA. pactfurly re
PASS	1-0 (	TW)			
and audited improvemental tray increase righters the first plantification of					
هٔ چه (مساحه مورد طبقه مساد مهیمان چین پر <sub>موس</sub> ین	Aull	Cou	mil e	Mi	8 -0
g, parameters and all resolves		**************************************			
autor concept have self of the left and the			m. 1	11	

SMEAD 73 YSP 17117

## ORDINANCE 117595

SW:ft

AN ORDINANCE authorizing a collective bargaining agreement between The City of Seattle and Seattle Police Management Association, effective through Freeember 31, 1997; fixing compensation and providing certain conditions of employment for certain positions and assignments in the Seattle Police Department; superseding inconsistent ordinances, and providing payment therefor.

WHEREAS, a collective bargaining agreement between the City and Seattle Police Management Association, as the representative of certain City employees, expired on December 31, 1994; and

WHEREAS, said employees continued to work after December 31, 1994, on condition that the subject of their wages was and continued to be negotiated during collective bargaining; and

WHEREAS, collective bargaining has led to finalization of terms concerning wages and certain other conditions of employment between the City and Seattle Police Management Association; and

WHERE', certain employees in Police Department nonrepresented assignments also continued to work after December 31, 1994, without wage increases or changes in other conditions of employment during the described negotiations, and the Police Department understands that their wages and certain conditions of employment be consistent with the negotiated collective bargaining agreements between the City and Seattle Police Management Association; Now, Therefore,

#### BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF SEATTLE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. As requested by the Personnel Director and recommended by the Mayor in the materials attached hereto, the Mayor is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the City to execute a collective bargaining agreement with Seattle Police Management Association, effective through December 31, 1997, substantially in the form attached hereto and identified "Agreement by and between The City of Seattle and Seattle Police Management Association," with "Appendix A" thereto setting forth rates of pay for the classes of positions listed therein effective December 28, 1994, December 27, 1995, and January 8, 1997.

Section 2. As requested by the Personnel Director and recommended by the wayor in the materials attached hereto, the base monthly rates of compensation of designated represented and nonrepresented obsitions and assignments in the Police Department shall be as follows:

Police Lieutenant	\$5,170	\$5,382	\$5,603
Police Captain	\$5,940	\$6,182	\$6,437
Police Communica on Direct	\$5,940	<b>\$6,182</b>	\$6,437
Administrative Assistant to Chir of Police	\$5,940	\$6,182	\$6,437
Police Majo	\$7,104	\$7,395	
Police Major-Inspectional Services	\$7,104	\$7,395	

Effective December 28, 1994

Section 3. Effective December 27, 1995, the base wage rates enumerated in Section 2 shall be increased by 100 percent (100%) of the increase from July 1994 to July 1995 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 2% or greater than 7%.

Section 4. Effective January 8, 1997, the base wage rates set forth in Section 2 as adjusted pursuant to Section 3 above shall be increased by one hundred percent (100%) of the percentage increase from July 1995 to July 1996 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 2% or greater than 7%.

Section 5. Employees in positions and assignments designated in Section 2 shall be eligible for longevity premium pay in addition to the base monthly rates of compensation authorized herein in accordance with the following schedules:

Longevity	<u>Percentage</u>	Monthly Equivalent in Dollars Effective 12/28/94
Completion of fifteen (15) Years of Service	3%	\$168

2	Years of Service		
3	Completion of twenty-five (25) Years of Service	5%	\$280

Completion of twenty (20)

shall receive sixty (60) hours of executive leave per calendar year and the Administrative Assistant to Chief of Police shall receive eight (8) days of executive leave per calendar year under the provisions applicable to Police Majors and Police Captains, respectively, in the collective bargaining agreement authorized in Section 1. Ordinance 116864, which established an executive and merit leave benefit for certain regular administrative, professional and executive employees, insofar as inconsistent herewith, is hereby superseded, and shall have no application to the positions of Police Major assigned to Inspectional Services and of the Administrative Assistant to Chief of Police unless expressly provided by subsequent ordinance.

4%

\$224

Section 7. Effective January 1, 1995, uniformed personnel assigned Administrative Assistant to Chief of Police, and Major-Inspectional Services shall be covered by the medical and dental plan options provided to Seattle Police Management Association bargaining unit members in the collective bargaining agreement authorized in Section 1.

Section 8. The Police Department is hereby authorized to use unexpended and unencumbered salary funds accumulating in the 1995 Budget to pay the compensation authorized her.

The Finance Director is authorized to draw and pay the warrants drawn for the compensation.

Section 9. Any act consistent with the authority and prior to the effective date of this ordinance is hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 10. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days from and after its approval by the Mayor, but if not approved and returned by the Mayor within ten (10) days after presentation, it shall take effect as provided by Monicipal Code Section 1.04.020.

1	Passed by the City Council the 10 day of 4pt 1995, and
2	signed by me in open session in authentication of its passage this 10 day of
3	<u>amil</u> , 1995.
4	
5	() A
6	La Xtu
7	President of the City Council
	Approved by me this
8	Approved by me this day of, 15
9	
10	Moman Brice
11	Mayor Mayor
12	
13	Filed by me this 14 day of April , 1995.
14	
15	Margaret Carter
16	© Clerk
17	•
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

4

City of Seattle Personnel Department

Norman B. Rice, Mayor

JOUNG REMAINS AND THE WORK WAS A Welch, Acting Personnel Director



May 10, 1995

nd. 117595

METO ALES

TO:

Judith Pippin

City Clerk

ATTENTION:

Margaret Carter

FROM:

Ginger Holley of Labor Relations Acting Director

SUBJECT:

Collective Bargaining Agreement between The City of Seattle and Seattle Fire

Chiefs Association, IAFP, Local 2898; and Collective Bargaining Agreement

between The City of Seattle and Seattle Police Management Association

Enclosed is one signed copy of each of the collective bargaining agreements between The City of Seattle and Seattle Fire Chiefs Association, Local 2898, and the Seattle Police Management Association.

LL/bc Enclosures

CLERK CBA

An equal employment opportunity -12th Floor Dexter Horton Building 710 Second Avenus Seattle, WA 38104-1793 Fax # 884-4157

afirmative action employer Talephone Device for the Deaf and the Hearing Impaired (TDD) 884-7988

Printed on Recycled Paper

**AGREEMENT** 

By and Between

THE CITY OF SEATTLE

and

SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

Effective through December 31, 1997

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT	1
ARTICLE 2 - UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES	2
ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	4
ARTICLE 4 - SALARIES	9
ARTICLE 5 - HOLIDAYS	10
ARTICLE 6 - VACATIONS	12
ARTICLE 7 - PENSIONS	15
ARTICLE 8 - MEDICAL COVERAGE	16
ARTICLE 9 - DENTAL CARE	20
ARTICLE 10 - SICK LEAVE AND LONG TERM DISABILITY	21
ARTICLE 11 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	24
ARTICLE 12 - WORK STOFPAGES	25
ARTICLE 13 - SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT	26
ARTICLE 14 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	27
ARTICLE 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT	28
ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	29
ARTICLE 17 - POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS	33
ARTICLE 18 - CONFEFENCE BOARD	35
ARTICLE 19 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT	36
ADDENDIX A SALARIES	38

Seattle Police Management Association Effective through 12-31-97

#### **AGREEMENT**

BY AND BE WEEN

THE CITY OF SEATTLE

**AND** 

SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

This Agreement is between the City of Seattle (hereinafter called the Employer or the City) and the Seattle Police Management Association (hereinafter called the Association) for the purpose of setting forth the wages, hours and other conditions of employment for those employees for whom the Association is the exclusive bargaining representative.

#### ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT

- 1.1 The Employer recognizes the Seattle Probe Management Association as the exclusive bargaining representative for the collective bargaining unit described in decision(s) emanating from Washington State Public Employment Relations Commission Case No. 1620-E-78-314.
- 1.1.2 Pursuant to Section 1.1 above, the classifications of employees covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement.
- The elected President of the Association or his/her designated representatives are recognized by the Employer as official representatives of the Association empowered to act on behalf of members of the bargaining unit for negotiating with the Employer.
- 1.3 The President of the Association or his/her designated alternate shall be the liaison between the Association and the Seattle Police Department.
- 1.3.1 Upon sufficient notification the Employer shall grant the President of the Association or his/her designee a special leave of absence with pay to attend legislative hearings and/or conduct business for the Association to the extent that such leave does not interfere with the reasonable needs of the police department. The sum total of all such absences shall not exceed fifteen (15) work days in any calendar year. The Association shall reimburse the Employer for the hourly rate of pay including any premium pay for such time said Association representative spends on special leave of absence.

#### ARTICLE 2 - UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

2.1 Each regular full-time employee within the bargaining unit shall be required, as a condition of employment, to either join the Association or contributean amount equivalent to the regular monthly dues of the Association to the Association or contribute a like amount to the Police Charity Fund. When contributed to the Police Charity Fund, the amount shall be reported monthly to the Association and the Employer by the Police Charity Organization.

Employees, by the above language, have the option of either:

- a. Joining the Seattle Police Management Association.
- b. Paying an amount equivalent to the regular dues to the Police Charity Fund.
- c. Paying an amount equivalent to the regular dues to the Association without any membership rights.
- d. Employees who satisfy the religious exemption requirements of RCW 41.56.122 shall contribute an amount equivalent to regular Association dues and initiation fees to a nonreligious charity or to another charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the employee affected and the bargaining representative to which such employee would otherwise pay the regular monthly dues.

The employee shall furnish written proof that such payment has been made. If the employee and the bargaining representative do not reach agreement on such matter, the Public Employment Relations Commission shall designate the charitable organization.

When an employee fails to fulfill the above obligation, the Association shall provide the employee and the Employer with thirty (30) days' written notification of the Association's intent to initiate discharge action, and during this period the employee may make restitution in the amount which is overdue. If the employee has not fulfilled the above obligation by the end of the Association's thirty (30) calendar day discharge notification period, the Association will thereafter notify the City Director of Labor Pelations in writing, with a copy to the Chief of Police and employee, or such employee's failure to abide by Section 2.1. In this notice the Association will, if it is still seeking such, specifically request discharge of the employee for failure to abide by the terms of the labor agreement between the Employer and the Association, and the Employer shall effectuate the discharge.

- 2.2 Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of membership in or non-membership in the Association; provided, however, that this clause shall not restrict the Association from providing internal Association-sponsored benefits to Association members only.
- 2.3 The Employer agrees to deduct from the paycheck of each employee, who has so authorized it, the regular initiation fee, regular monthly dues and assessments uniformly required of members of the Association or amounts contributed to the Police Charity Fund in lieu of Association dues. The amounts deducted shall be transmitted twice each month to the Association on behalf of the employees involved. Authorization by the employee shall be on a form approved by the parties hereto and may be revoked by the employee upon request. The performance of this function is recognized as a service to the Association by the Employeer.
- 2.4 It is the responsibility of the Association to notify employees of their options regarding association and/or membership. The Association will administer the provisions of this Article with regard to membership or association of employees in accord with its obligations under the law. Any disputes concerning the amount of dues or fees and/or the responsibility of the Association to the employees covered by this Agreement shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures set forth in this Agreement. The Association agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Employer from any and all liability arising out of this Article.

#### ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

- 3.1 Selection of employees for the rank of Police Lieutenant or Police Captain shall be accomplished by the Employer in accordance with applicable rules established by the Public Safety Civil Service Commission for as long as the Commission has jurisdiction over such matter pursuant to City ordinance.
- 3.2 The rank of Porce Majo, is exempt from the jurisdiction of the Public Safety Civil Service Commission and the creation and maintenance of such a rank shall be at the sole discretion of the Employer. When such a rank exists, selection of employees for the rank of Police Major shall be at the discretion of the Employer. Employees as selected shall serve at the sole pleasure of the Chief of Police, with the exception being that a reassignment in rank or discipling action taken as a result of misconduct must be for just cause.
- 3.3 Rehires. In the event an employee leaves the service of the Employer and within the next two years the Employer re-hires said former employee in the same classification to which assigned at date of termination, such employee shall be placed at the step in the salary range which he/she occupied at the time of the original termination. Such previous time worked shall be included for the purpose of determining eligibility for service steps.
- 3.4 Overtime and Executive Leave.
- 3.4.1 Lieutenants shall receive eight hours' pay for their regularly scheduled eight-hour day, which includes a one-half hour meal period and therefore constitutes seven and one-half hours worked. In the event a Lieutenant works through a meal period, the Lieutenant shall not receive additional compensation. Lieutenants shall receive additional compensation for work in excess of eight hours, excluding meal periods. Lieutenants shall either be (a) compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) or (b) provided with one and one-half (1½) nours off for each hour worked in excess of eight (8) in a day, excluding meal periods.
- 3.4.2 The work period for Lieutenants shall be one hundred seventy-one (171) hours in a twenty-eight (28) day work period. Lieutenants shall either be (a) compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) or (b) provided with one and one-half (1½) hours off for each hour worked in excess of one hundred seventy-one (171) in a twenty-eight (28) day work period. The Employer shall not arbitrarily change nor reschedule furlough days in order to avoid the earning of overtime by Lieutenants who work the 6/2 schedule.

- Effective May 1, 1987, Lieutenants who have worked overtime and are thereby eligible for overtime compensation will be allowed the choice of whether they will be a) compensated by a cash payment at the rate of time and one-half; or b) compensated by receiving additional paid leave at the rate of time and one-half for all overtime hours worked up to forty or in excess of ninety in a payroll year. The Department Bureau Commanders will have sole discretion to decide that the form of compensation due to Lieutenants eligible for overtime for all overtime hours worked from forty through ninety in a payroll year shall be a cash payment rather than additional paid leave.
- In the event Lieutenants are called back to work overtime which is not an extension either at the beginning or end of a normal shift, they will be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours at the time and one-half (1½) rate in the form of either a cash payment or time off. A shift extension is defined as reporting for duty within two (2) hours preceding or within one (1) hour following a Lieutenant's regularly scheduled shift.
- Management employees of the rank of Police Captain and Police Major may be ordered by the Employer to work overtime and to be on standby although they will not receive and are not entitled to overtime and/or standby pay. In lieu thereof, each Captain will be granted sixty-four (64) nours of noncumulative paid Executive Leave per calendar year, and each Major will be granted sixty (60) hours of noncumulative paid Executive Leave per calendar year. Such leave shall be available on January 1 of each year, provided that if an employee fails to remain employed throughout the calendar year, such leave shall be prorated. Each Captain will have the option of cashing out a maximum of ten (10) hours of Executive Leave each calendar year, and each Major will have the option of cashing out a maximum of twenty (20) hours of Executive Leave each calendar year, provided that the employee gives the Police Department notice by July 1 of each such year. Any such Executive Leave cashout will be paid on the first pay date in August of that calendar year.
- 3.4.6 Employees appointed (promoted) to the rank of Captain or Major after January 1 of any calendar year shall, for the calendar year in which appointed, only be entitled to a promated share of sixty-four (64) hours of Executive Leave time for the rank of Captain and sixty (60) hours of Executive Leave time for the rank of Major based upon the number of full pay periods remaining in that calendar year. Such prorated share shall accrue immediately upon appointment.
- Use of Executive Leave shall be accomplished in the same manner as vacation leave or in accordance with specific policies promulgated by the Seattle Police Department for use of Executive Leave. Such leave shall not accumulate from year

to year. It must be used in the calendar year in which it is granted or else it will be lost.

- The daily work hours of an employee may, upon direction from or with the concurrence of the Employer, be adjusted to accommodate the varying time demands of the activities for which the employee is responsible. For example, upon direction from or with the concurrence of the Employer, an employee may work ten (10) hours one day and six (6) hours the next day or six (6) days one week and four (4) days the following week or any other variation specifically approved by the Employer on a case-by-case basis.
- 3.6 Standby
- 3.6.1 Standby time shall be defined as that period of time during which an employee is required to remain in a state of readiness to respond to a summons to duty and for which discipline may attach for failure to respond. However, the issuance of a bell boy communicator to an employee does not constitute placing the employee on standby, and no employee shall be restricted in his or her movement or activities by the issuance of the communicator.
- 3.6.2 Lieutenants shall not be assigned off-duty standby time.
- 3.7 Whenever an employee is assigned for a period of two consecutive weeks or more by the Employer via written directive to perform all of the duties and accept all of the responsibility of a higher paid position normally filled by a superior police officer who is temporarily absent due to illness, vacation or travel on City business, he/she shall be paid at the first pay step of the higher position while continuously performing the work of the higher paid position. Opportunities for temporary work out-of-class for vacancies due to vacation, illness, leave of absence or similar circumstances in the following three positions may, at the Employer's discretion, be made available to any supervisory employee in the Police Department. Captain's position in the Records Division; Major's position in the Crime Prevention Division; and, Assistant Chief's position in the Administrative Services Bureau.
- No employee shall be required to work without a firearm except when reasonably deemed necessary by the Employer to be in the best interest or the City.
- 3.9 The Employer's firearms policies as amended from time to time pertaining to uniformed officers of the rank of Police Officer and Sergeant shall also apply to employers covered by this Agreement.

- 3.10 Personnel Files. The personnel files are the property of the Employer. The Employer agrees that the contents of the personnel files shall be confidential and shall restrict the use of information in the files to internal use by the Employer or other police agencies, provided the Employer may release the personal photograph and biographical information to the public when an employee is promoted to any rank covered by this Agreement or is the recipient of a Commendation. This provision shall not restrict such information from being presented to any court or administrative tribunal.
- 3.11 in accordance with Ordinance 104526, as amended, it shall be a condition of employment that in the event there is made against an employee any claims and/or litigation arising from any conduct, acts or omissions of such employee in the scope and course of their City employment, the City Attorney of the City shall, at the request of or on behalf of said employee, investigate and defend such claims and/or litigation and, if a claim be deemed by the City Attorney a proper one or if judgment be rendered against such employee, said claim or judgment shall be paid by the City in accordance with procedures established by Ordinance 104526, as amended, for the settlement of claims and payment of judgments.
- 3.12 The Employer's False Arrest Insurance program as amended from time to time pertaining to uniformed officers of the rank of Police Officer and Sergeant shall also apply to employees covered by the Agreement.
- 3.13 Sickness/Serious Injury in the Family. In the event of a sudden, unexpected, disabling illness or injury to a member of the immediate family of an employee, said employee, upon approval of the Chief of Police or his/her designee, will be granted such release time as is reasonably necessary to stabilize the employee's family situation. The employee will, upon request, provide the necessary documentation to establish the nature and duration of the emergency.
- 3.14 The City shall offer a group Life Insurance option to eligible employees. The employee shall pay sixty percent (60%) of the monthly premium and the City shall pay forty percent (40%) of the monthly premium at a premium rate established by the City and the carrier. The City will offer an option for employees to purchase additional life insurance coverage for themselves and/or their families, at the employees' sole expense. The implementation of this new benefit will correspond with the implementation of the City's new HRIS system.
- 3.15 The Employer agrees to provide a fund to repair or replace clothes or equipment damaged in the line of duty.

- 3.16 Effective upon the date of signing of this Agreement, employees who are authorized by the City to provide a personal automobile for use in City business shall be reimbursed for such use at the rate of twenty-nine cents (\$0.29) per mile.
- 3.16.1 The cents per mile mileage reimbursement rate cited above shall be adjusted annually, on January 15, to reflect the United States Internal Revenue Service audit rate then in effect for purposes of United States Income Tax deductions for use of a privately owned automobile for business purposes.
- 3.17 Physical Fitness. All employees will be required to take current weight and blood pressure tests at least once a year.
- 3.18 Smoking Policy. All provisions of Ordinance #113836, pertaining to the Citywide smoking policy will be enforced as written.

### ARTICLE 4 - SALARIES

4.1 The Employer shall pay the salaries set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 5 - HOLIDAYS

- 5.1 Employees shall be allowed twelve (12) holidays off per year with pay, or twelve (12) days off in lieu thereof, at the discretion of the Chief of Police. A holiday shall be defined as commencing at 2000 hours on the day preceding the actual date of the holiday for those employees working a 6/2 schedule. A holiday shall be defined as the day of observance recognized by the Chief for those employees working a 5/2 schedule.
  - a. The Employer and the Association agree that for Christmas and New Year's the holiday hours for Harbor and Communications shall commence at 1600 hours on the day preceding the actual holiday and end at 1600 hours on the day of the holiday; whereas for Homicide and Robbery, the Christmas and New Year's holiday hours shall commence at 1600 hours on the day preceding the day of observance for the holiday which is recognized by the City and end at 1600 hours on the day of observance.
- Employees who are regularly scheduled to work during the holiday time periods enumerated below shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times their regular hourly rate of pay for each hour worked during said period; provided, however, there shall be no pyramiding of the overtime and holiday premium pay.

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day (July 4)
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
The day immediately following Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

5.3 Whenever an employee has actually worked a holiday covered in Section 5.1 and the employee has not been given a day off with pay in lieu thereof and the employee is subsequently prevente a from taking such a day off during that calendar year because of illness, injury or department work schedule, the employee may carry over to the next succeeding year such unused holiday time, or the Employer may compensate the employee at his/her straight time hourly rate for said holiday time.

5.4 Employees assigned to units that are traditionally closed or operate with a reduced staff on the holidays may elect to work on those days but will not be entitled to the premium compensation set forth for the holidays enumerated in Section 5.2.

#### **ARTICLE 6 - VACATIONS**

- Annual vacations with pay shall be granted to eligible employees computed at the rate shown in Section 6.3 for each hour on regular pay status as shown on the payroll, but not to exceed eighty (80) hours per pay period; except in the case of employees who work a six (6)/two (2) schedule whose work hours are equivalent to eighty (80) hours biweekly on an annualized basis.
- "Regular pay status" is defined as regular straight-time hours of work plus paid time off such as vacation time and holiday time off. At the discretion of the Employer, up to one hundred and sixty (160) hours per calendar year of unpaid leave of absence may be included as service for purposes of accruing vacation.
- 6.3 The vacation accrual rate shall be determined in accordance with the rates set forth in Column No. 1. Column No. 2 depicts the corresponding equivalent annual vacation for a regular full-time employee. Column No. 3 depicts the maximum number of vacation hours that can be accrued and accumulated by an employee at any time.

COLUMN NO. 1			MN NO. 2 IVALENT ANNUAL		COLUMN NO. 3
			ACATION FOR		MAXIMUM
ACCRUAL RATE	Vacation	FULL	TIME EMPLOYEE		VACATION
Hours on Regular	Earned	Years of	Working Days		BALANCE
Pay Status	Per Hour	Service	Per Year	(Flours)	(HOURS)
0 through 08320	0460	0 through 4	12	(96)	192
08321 through 18720		5 through 9	1 15	(120)	740
18721 through 29120 .		10 through	14 16	(128)	256
29121 through 39520		15 through	19 18	(144)	288
39521 through 41600 .		20	20	(160)	320
41601 through 43680 .		21	21	(168)	336
43681 through 45760 .		22	22	(176)	352
45761 through 47840 .		23	23	(184)	368
47841 through 49920 .		24		(192)	384
49921 through 52000 .		25	25	(200)	400
52001 through 54080		26		(208)	416
54081 through 56160 .		27	27	(216)	432
56161 through 58240 .		28	28	(224)	448
58241 through 60320 .		29	29	(232)	464
60321 and over		30	30	(240)	480

An employee who is eligible for vacation benefits shall accrue vacation from the date of entering City service or the date upon which he/she became eligible and may accumulate a vacation balance which shall never exceed at any time two (2) times the number of annual vacation hours for which the employee is currently eligible. Accrual and accumulation of vacation time shall cease at the time an

employee's vacation balance reaches the maximum balance allowed and shall not resume until the employee's vacation balance is below the maximum allowed.

- 6.5 Employees may, with Employer approval, use accumulated vacation with pay after completing one thousand forty (1040) hours on regular pay status.
- In the event that the Employer cancels an employee's already scheduled and approved vacation leaving no time to reschedule such vacation before the employee's maximum balance will be reached, the employee's vacation balance will be permitted to exceed the allowable maximum and the employee shall continue to accrue vacation for a period of up to three months if such exception is approved by both the Chief of Police and the Personnel Director in order to allow rescheduling of the employee's vacation. In such cases the Chief of Police shall provide the Personnel Director with the circumstances and reasons leading to the necessary such an extension. No extension of this grace period will be allowed.
- "Service year" is defined as the period of time between an employee's date of hire and the one-year anniversary date of the employee's date of hire or the period of time between any two consecutive anniversaries of the employee's date of hire thereafter.
- 6.8 The minimum vacation allowance to be taken by an employee shall be one-half (½) of a day or, at the discretion of the Chief of Police, such lesser fraction of a day as shall be approved by the Chief of Police.
- 6.9 An employee who retires or resigns or who is laid off after more than six (6) months service shall be paid in a lump sum for any unused vacation he/she has previously accrued.
- 6.9.1 "Resign" for purposes of this Section shall be defined as the employee giving two (2) weeks prior written notice of such intent to resign.
- 6.10 Upon the death of an employee in active service, pay shall be allowed for any vacation accrued prior to the death of such employee.
- 6.11 Except for family and medical leave granted pursuant to Ordinance 116761, an employee granted an extended leave of absence which includes the next succeeding calendar year shall be paid in a lump sum for any unused vacation he/she has previously accrued or, at the Employer's option, the employee shall be required to exhaust such vacation time before being separated from the payroll.

- 6.12 An employee who quits or is dismissed for cause shall be paid in a lump sum for any vacation earned in the preceding year and not taken prior to separation from the City service, but not for the current year. An employee shall be considered to have quit, as opposed to resigned, when he/she gives less than two (2) calendar weeks' written notice to the City of the date of his/her voluntary termination of City employment.
- Where an employee has exhausted his/her sick leave balance, the employee may use vacation for further leave for medical reasons only with prior approval of the Chief of Police. Except for family and medical leave granted pursuant to Ordinance 116761, employees must use all accrued vacation prior to beginning a leave of absence.
- 6.14 The Chief of Police shall arrange vacation time for employees on such schedules as will least interfere with the functions of the department but which accommodate the desires of the employees to the greatest degree feasible.

### ARTICLE 7 - PENSIONS

7.1 Pensions for employees and contributions to pension funds will be governed by the Washington State Statute in existence at the time.

### ARTICLE 8 - MEDICAL COVERAGE

- 8.1 Medical coverage shall be provided in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington, R.C.W. 41.20.120 and/or R.C.W. 41.26.150.
- 8.2 For employees covered by this Agreement who were hired before October 1, 1077, and are covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, the City will provide a medical care program, as established by the City, for the dependents of eligible employees pursuant to Ordinance 102498, as amended.
- For employees covered by this Agreement who are not covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26 or who are hired on or after October 1, 1977, and who are not entitled to medical coverage under State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, the City shall provide a medical care program, as established by the City, for eligible employees and their eligible dependents. The age limit for eligible dependent children shall be twenty-one (21) years, or twenty-three (23) years, if enrolled in school full time.
- During the term of this Agreement, the City shall pay not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the King County Medical Blue Shield Plan's 1995 monthly premium (or less than twelve times those 1995 monthly premiums on an annual basis) for the medical care progrems, effective May 1, 1995, cited in Section 8.7. Any increase in the annualized total of monthly medical premiums over the 1995 calendar year shall be the responsibility of the employee, in whole or in part, as provided by Section 8.9.
- During the term of this Agreement, the City shall pay not less than ninety percent (90%) of the Group Health Cooperative Plan's, ninety percent (90%) of the Options Plan's and ninety percent (90%) of the Pacific Health Plan's 1995 monthly premium (or less than twelve times 90% of those 1995 monthly premiums on an annual basis) for the programs cited in Section 8.6. Employees that subscribe to the Group Health Cooperative Plan, the Options Plan or to the Pacific Health Plan shall pay the remaining ten percent (10%) of the monthly premium cost during the term of this Agreement. In addition, any increase in the annual zed total of monthly medical premiums over the 1995 calendar year shall be the responsibility of the employee, in whole or in part, as provided by Section 8.9.
- 8.6 Effective April 1, 1994, Group Health Cooperative Plan and Pacific Health Plan subscribers are required to pay a \$5.00 fee for each visit to a provider, a \$5.00 fee for each 30-day prescription drug supply and a \$50.00 fee for each emergency room visit. The City will provide a vision care benefit under the Group Health Cooperative Plan. Effective May 1, 1995. Options Plan subscribers are required to

pay a \$7.00 fee for each visit to a provider for other than preventive care, a \$7.00 fee for each 30-day prescription drug supply and a \$50.00 fee for each emergency room visit. For care outside the Group Health network, Options Plan subscribers will be required to pay a deductible of \$150 per covered person per calendar year, with a family maximum of \$450. Benefits will be paid at 60% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$4,000 per person during each calendar year (an out-of-pocket coinsurance maximum of \$1,600 per individual and \$4,800 per family), then are paid at 100% of the usual, reasonable and customary charges for the remainder of the year.

- 8.7 Effective May 1, 1995, the King County Medical Blue Shield Plan shall consist of a preferred provider organization and a managed prescription drug program as follows:
  - a. Lifetime maximum benefit: \$1,000,000
  - b. For services received within the preferred provider network:

Benefits are haid at 50% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$2,000 per person during each calendar year; then are paid at 190% of usual and customary charges for the remainder of the year.

- c. For services received outside the preferred provider network:
  - Benefits are paid at 60% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$4,000 per person during each calendar year; then are paid at 100% of usual and customary charges for the remainder of the year.
- d. Deductible for care provided within the preferred provider network: \$100 per covered person per calendar year. If three or more covered family members satisfy \$300 in eligible deductible expenses in a calendar year, no further deductible will be required from any family members during that calendar year. Deductible for care provided outside the preferred provider network: \$150 per covered person per calendar year and \$450 per family. The deductible is payable by the employee before any benefits of the plan, as described above, are payable.
- e. The above medical plan will include vision care and chiropractic care.
- f. Chemical dependency and psychiatric treatment are as follows:

Chemical Dependency: Inpatient and outpatient: Paid at 80% to out-

of-pocket limit, then paid at 100% to a maximum of \$10,000 every two calendar years; \$20,000 lifetime

maximum.

Psychiatric Treatment: Inpatient: Paid at 80% to out-of-pocket limit, then

paid at 100% to \$2,000 per year. Outpatient: Paid at 50% to \$500 per year (does not accumulate

toward out-of-pocket limit).

g. Prescription drug purchases of a 34-day or 100-unit supply from designated participating pharmacies will be subject to an \$8 copay, and prescription drug purchases of a 90-day supply from the designated mail order pharmacy will be subject to a \$16 copay.

8.8 The City has the right to continue its comprehensive utilization review program under the King County Medical Blue Shield-Plan. The program may include but not be limited to the following elements:

Pre-admission notification and review.
Mandatory outpatient surgery.
Second surgical opinion
Continued stay review.
Catastrophic case management.
Discharge planning.

- 8.9 For the calendar years 1996 and 1997, during the term of this Agreement, employees shall pay 100% of the increase in the annualized total of monthly medical premiums over the 1995 calendar year, up to a maximum of 10% per year, for any of the medical plans cited in Sections 8.6 and 8.7. Premium increases in excess of ten percent (10%) per year for any of the plans will be shared equally by the City and the employees. The employees' premium sharing obligation, if any, shall be paid monthly.
- The health care programs cited in Section 8.6 and Section 8.7 above do not have to remain exactly the same as the programs in effect upon the effective date of this Agreement but the medical benefits shall remain substantially the same. The City may, at its discretion, change the insurance carrier for any of the medical benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan through another carrier. However, any contemplated modification(s) to the medical benefits afforded under the existing health care program(s) or a change in carrier(s) shall first be discussed with the Association. If a carrier is unable or unwilling to maintain a major benefit now

covered under said plans, the parties to this Agreement shall enter immediate negotiations over selection of a new carrier and/or modification of the existing plan.

8.11 During the term of this Agreement, the Employer may eliminate the insurance carrier for any of the medical benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan either through self-insurance or a combination of self-insurance and carrier provided benefits provided such change main and substantially the same level of medical benefits and is more cost effective. The Employer, at its discretion, may provide, and later discontinue if it deems appropriate, any other medical care options in addition to those cited in Sections 8.6 and 8.7.

#### ARTICLE 9 - DENTAL CARE

- Q.1 Dental Care. During the term of this Agreement, the Employer shall provide a Dental Care Program to all eligible employees and their dependents under conditions of the dental care contract between the Employer and Washington Dental Service which is applicable to employees covered by this Agreement and in effect upon the signing of this Agreement.
- 9.2 During calendar year 1995, the Employer shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly premium for the dental care coverage cited in Section 9.1 above.
- 9.3 For the calendar years 1996 and 1997, during the term of this Agreement, employees shall pay 100% of the increase in the annualized total of monthly dental care premiums over the 1995 calendar year, up to a maximum of 10% per year. Premium increases in excess of ten percent (10%) per year for any of the plans will be shared equally by the City and the employees. The employees' premium sharing obligation, if any, shall be paid monthly.
- The dental care program cited in Section 9.1 above does not have to remain exactly the same as the program in effect upon the effective date of this Agreement but the denta! benefits shall remain substantially the same. The Employer may, at its discretion, change the insurance carrier for the dental benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan through another carrier. However, any contemplated modification(s) to the dental benefits afforded under the existing dental care program or a change in carrier shall first be discussed with the Association. If a carrier is unable or unwilling to maintain a major benefit new covered under said plans, the parties to this Agreement shall enter immediate negotiations over selection of a new carrier and/or modification of the existing plan.
- Quring the term of this Agreement, the Employer may eliminate the insurance carrier for the dental benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan either through self-insurance or a combination of self-insurance and carrier provided benefits, provided such change maintains substantially the same level of dental benefits and is more cost effective. The Employer, at its discretion, may provide, and later discontinue if it deems appropriate, any other dental care options in addition to those cited in Section 9.1 above.
- 9.6 The per person annual maximum benefit for the dental care coverage cited in Section 9.1 shall be \$1,000.

## ARTICLE 10 - SICK LEAVE AND LONG TERM DISABILITY

- Employees covered by this Agreement who are not covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26 shall receive sick leave benefits provided to other City employees under Ordinance 88522 as amended.
- Employees covered by this Agreement hired on or after October 1, 1977, who are not entitled to disability leave under State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, shall be granted sick leave benefits as provided under Ordinance 88522, as amended. Effective October 1, 1989, upon retirement or death, twenty five percent (25%) of an employee's unused sick leave credit accumulation can be applied to the payment of health care premiums, or to a cash payment at the straight-time rate of pay of such employee in effect on the day prior to the employee's retirement.
- Effective October 1, 1989, for employees covered by this Agreement who were hired on or after October 1, 1977, and who are not covered by State Statute RCW 41.26 for non-occupational disability leave, the City will make available a long term disability (LTD) program concerning non-occupational accidents or illnesses as established by the City

The LTD program shall be provided via an insurance policy with Standard Insurance Company under Policy 441446, as amended effective October 1, 1989. However, it is understood that Policy 441446 or any alternative insurance policy is not part of this Agreement but that this Agreement only obligates the City to provide the major long term disability benefits covered by the initial policy. Any disagreement over the terms of such an insurance policy shall not be subject to the grievance procedure contained herein, but such disagreement shall be subject to other remedies provided by law.

- The LTD program cited in Section 10.3 above shall be a group plan requiring mandatory participation by all eligible employees. Each eligible employee's share of the cost shall be contributed through payroll deduction pursuant to authorization by the Seattle Police Management Association in its capacity as the representative of the affected employees.
- Beginning with the premium payment for October 1989, the City's contribution toward the cost of the LTD program shall be thirty-two and one-half cents (\$.325) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. The eligible employees' share of the cost shall be ninety-four and one-half cents (\$.945) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings.

- 10.6 Effective upon payment for the January 1990 premium, the eligible employees' share of the cost shall be sixty-three and one-half cents (\$.635) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. The City's share shall remain at thirty-two and one-half cents (\$.325) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. Any subsequent increases to the LTD January 1990 premium rate of ninety-six cents (\$.96) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings shall be paid by the eligible employees through the date payment is made to cover the premium due for the month of December 1997.
- During the term of this Agreement, the City may, at its discretion, change or eliminate the insurance carrier for any of the long term disability benefits covered by Section 10.3 above and provide an alternative plan either through self insurance or another insurance carrier.
- During the term of 'his Agreement, if the insurance carrier providing the LTD benefits covered by Section 10.3 above is unable or unwilling to continue to provide coverage or to maintain a major long term disability benefit in effect on October 1, 1980, the City shall have the option of 1) continuing the LTD program through self insurance, 2) changing insurance carriers, 3) officially reopening negotiations with the Association over whether or not to continue to provide LTD coverage and, if so, with what benefits or 4) continuing to provide LTD through the existing insurance carrier. If option number 3 is selected by the City, said negotiations shall commence no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the City has given the Association written notice of its intent to renegotiate the LTD program cited in this Article.
- The LTD benefits covered by Section 10.3 above do not have to remain exactly the same as the benefits in effect on October 1, 1989, and the language or any changes thereto in the insurance policy providing for long term disability benefits need not be negotiated with the Association; provided, however, the substance of the major long term disability benefits in effect as of October 1, 1989, shall remain substantially the same unless changed pursuant to Section 10.8, option 3, of this Article or future labor negotiations.
- The LTD program as covered by Sections 10.3 through 10.9 of this Article and the City's obligation thereunder shall become null and void if 1) the state or federal government offers non-occupational disability coverage to affected employees or mandates that the City make available coverage for non-occupational disabilities or 2) the City and any police officers covered by the long term disability provisions under this Article are required to participate in the federal Social Security program.

- 10.11 Sick Leave Incentive. Effective January 1, 1990, employees covered by this Agreement, hired on or after October 1, 1977, who are not entitled to disability leave under State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, shall be eligible for the following sick leave incentive program:
  - a. Employees who use no sick leave in a payroll year, shall have sixteen (16) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year, for example, employees who use no sick leave in the payroll year ending December 19, 1989, shall have sixteen (16) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for 1990;
  - Employees who use two (2) days or less of sick leave in a payroll year, shall have twelve (12) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year;
  - c. Employees who use four (4) days or less of sick leave in a payroll year, shall have eight (8) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year.
    - Such incentive sick leave shall be subject to all rules, regulations and restrictions as normally earned sick leave, except as provided below.
  - d. Incentive sick 'eave may be used only after all regular sick leave has been used.
  - e. Incentive sick leave may not be cashed out or applied to the payment of health care premiums pursuant to Section 10.2 above.
  - f. If an employee is absent from work due to an on duty injury or illness or a leave of absence, for thirty (30) days or more, the amount of incentive sick leave that can be potentially earned will be proportionally reduced.

#### **ARTICLE 11 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- The management of the City and the direction of the work force are vested exclusively in the City, except as may be limited by an express provision of this Agreement. Without limitation, implied or otherwise, all matters not specifically and expressly covered by this Agreement shall be administered by the City in accordance with such policy or procedure as the City from time to time may determine.
- 11.2 Except where limited by an express provision of this Agreement, the City reserves the right to manage and operate the Police Department at its discretion. Examples of such rights include the right:
  - a. To recruit, hire, assign, transfer or promote employees;
  - b. Notwithstanding Article 3.2, to suspend, demote and/or discharge employees or take other disciplinary action with just cause;
  - c. To determine the methods, processes, means and personnel necessary for providing police service, including the increase, or diminution, or change of operations, or police equipment, in whole or in part, including the introduction of any and all new, improved, automated methods or equipment, the assignment of employees to specific jobs, the determination of job content and/or job duties and the combination or consolidation of jobs;
  - d. To determine work schedules and the location of departmental headquarters and facilities; and
  - e. To control the departmental budget.
- The City further reserves the right to take whatever actions are necessary in emergencies in order to assure the proper functioning of the department.

#### ARTICLE 12 - WORK STOPPAGES

- Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give an employee the right to strike and no employee shall strike or refuse to perform his/her assigned duties to the best of his/her ability. The Association agrees that it will not cause, condone or engage in any strike, slowdown, sick-out or any other form of work stoppage or interference to the normal operation of municipal functions. Employees shall not cause, condone or engage in any strike, slowdown, sick-out or any other form of work stoppage or interference to the normal operation of municipal functions. Employees who engage in any of the foregoing actions shall be subject to such disciplinary actions as may be determined by the City, including but not limited to discharge and/or the recovery of any financial losses suffered by the City.
- 12.2 The Employer shall not engage in lockout.

#### ARTICLE 13 - SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT

- 13.1 It is understood that the parties hereto and the employees of the City are governed by the provisions of ap "cable Federal Law and State Law. When any provisions thereof are in conflict with or are different from the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of said Federal Law and State Law are paramount and shall prevail.
- Employees of the City are governed by applicable City Ordinances, and said Ordinances are paramount except where they conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement, and except where, in the event of changes to the wages, hours or working conditions of employees covered by this Agreement, bargaining is required by chapter 41.56 RCW.

#### **ARTICLE 14 - SAVINGS CLAUSE**

If any provision of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent junediction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any Article should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations with respect to issues arising from such holding of invalidity or such restraint.

### **ARTICLE 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

- The Agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and nothing shall add to or supersede any of its provisions, except by written agreement.
- The parties acknowledge that each has had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any matter deemed a proper subject for collective bargaining. The results of the exercise of that right are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City and the Association for the duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly, agree to waive the right to oblige the other party to bargain with respect to any subject or matter whether or not specifically governed by this Agreement; provided that the Association does not waive its right to obligate the City to bargain with respect to any changes proposed by the City in the wages, hours or working conditions of employees covered by this Agreement.

### **ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

- Any dispute between the Employer and the Association concerning the interpretation or claim of breach or violation of the express terms of this Agreement shall be deemed a grievance. Such a dispute shall be processed in accordance with this Article. Any other type of dispute between the parties as well as disputes involving: (1) Public Safety Civil Service Commission Rules or Regulations whether specified in this Agreement or not, if there be such, (2) a reassignment in rank from Major to Captain which was not the result of misconduct, and (3) Article 7 Pensions, shall not be subject to the procedure delineated in this Article.
- A grievance as defined in Section 16.1 of this Article shall be processed in accordance with the following procedures:
  - STEP 1. Any alleged grievance shall be submitted in writing to the Association by the aggrieved employee within fifteen (15) calendar days of the day the employee knew or shot Id have known of the alleged contract violation. If the Association supports the grievance, it shall be reduced to written form by the Association, stating the section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, a detailed explanation of the grievance and the remedy sought. The written grievance shall be submitted to the aggrieved employee's commanding officer within thirty (30) calendar days of the alleged contract violation, with a copy to the aggrieved employee's Bureau Chief, the Chief of Administrative Services, the Police Department Director of Personnel and the City Director of Labor Relations.
  - STEP 2. If the grievance is not resolved pursuant to Step 1 above, it shall be reduced to writing in the same manner described in Step 1. The Association shall forward the Step 2 grievance to the City Director of Labor Relations with a copy to the Chief of Police, the Chief of Administrative Services, the Police Department Director of Personnel and the Bureau Chief of the aggrieved employee within sixty (60) calendar days of the alleged contract violation. The Director of Labor Relations or his designee shall either investigate the grievance or convene a Grievance Board as described below. The Director of Labor Relations shall thereafter make a recommendation to the Chief of Police within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of the written grievance or the adjournment of the Grievance Board. The Chief of Police shall, within ten (10) working days increafter, provide the Association with his/her written decision on the grievance with a copy to the City Director of Labor

Relations. If a Grievance Board is convened by the Director of Labor Relations, it shall consist of:

Presiding Chairperson - City Director of Labor Relations or his/her designee.

Member - Chief of Police or his/her designee from within the Police Department.

Member - President of the Seattle Police Management Association or his/her designee within the Association.

STEP 3. If the contract grievance is not seitled at Step 2, either the Association or the Employer may request the Washington State Public Employment Relations Commission to supply both parties with a list of five (5) qualified arbitrators. If no agreement is reached between the parties relative to the choice of an arbitrator from that list within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of said list, or the initiating party opts to bypass a PERC list of arbitrators, the contract grievance shall be referred to the American Arbitration Association for arbitration to be conducted under its voluntary labor arbitration regulations.

Referral to arbitration (PERC or AAA) must be made within thirty (30) calendar days after the decision in Step 2 and be accompanied by the following information:

- 1. Identification of the section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated.
- 2. Details or nature of the alleged violation.
- 3. Position of the party who is referring the grievance to arbitration.
- 4. Question(s) which the a bitrator is being asked to decide.
- 5. Remedy sought.
- 16.2.1 The parties agree to abide by the award made in connection with any arbitrable difference.
- 16.2.2 In connection with any arbitration proceeding held pursuant to this Agreement, it is understood as foliows:

- a. The Arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision that will add to, subtract from, alter, change or modify the terms of this Agreement, and his/her power shall be limited to interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement.
- b. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the City, the Association and employees involved.
- c. The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Association, and each party shall bear the cost of presenting its own case.
- d. The arbitrator's decision shall be made in writing and shall be issued to the parties within thirty (30) days after the case is submitted to the arbitrator.
- e. Any arbitrator selected under Step 3 of this Article shall function pursuant to the voluntary labor arbitration regulations of the American Arbitration Association unless stipulated otherwise in writing by the parties of this Agreement.
- f. If the grievance is submitted to the American Arbitration Association, the arbitrator shall be selected from a list of five names obtained from the American Arbitration Association. If the Employer and the Association cannot agree on one arbitrator from said list, then each party will strike one name alternately, until only one name remains. The party to strike the first name will be determined by a coin toss.
- The time for processing a grievance stipulated in Section 16.2 may be extended for stated periods of time by mutual written agreement between the Employer and the Association, and the parties to 6. Agreement may likewise, by mutual written agreement, waive any step or steps of Section 16.2.
- Failure by an employee or the Association to comply with any time limitation of the procedure in this Article shall constitute withdrawal of the grievance. Failure by the Employer to comply with any time limitations of the procedure in this Article shall allow the Association to proceed to the next step without waiting for the Employer to reply at the previous step.
- Grievance settlements shall not be made retroactive beyond the date of the occurrence or nonoccurrence upon which the grievance is based, that date being fifteen (15) or less days prior to the initial rung of the grievance.
- 16.6 If at any step in the grievance procedure the Employer's response is deemed unsatisfactory, the Association's reason(s) for nonacceptance must be presented.

in writing when, and if, the grievance is  $r = -\pi d$  at the next step of the grievance procedure.

- A grievance decision at any step of the procedure in Section 16.2 of this Article shall not necessarily be conclusive nor set a precedent, with the exception of Step 3. A decision at Step 1 or 2 shall be subject to review and/or reversal by the Employer at any time; provided, however a decision at Step 2 shall not be reversed beyond ninety (90) calendar days after the issuance of the Step 2 decision. In case a decision is set aside as described in this Section the ensuing grievance time limits shall become operative when the Association is notified of the reversal.
- 16.8 Employees will follow all written and verbal directives, even if such directives are allegedly in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- As an alternative to answering the Step 2 grievance or conducting an investigation or hearing at Step 2, the Director of Labor Relations after consultation with the Chief of Police may, in writing, refer the grievance back to the Association. The Association may then initiate Step 3 of this procedure within the time frames specified therein.
- An employee must upon initiating objections relating to actions subject to appeal through both the contract grievance procedure or pertinent Public Safety Civil Service Commission appeal procedures use either the grievance procedure contained herein or pertinent procedures regarding such appeals to the Public Safety Civil Service Commission. Under no circumstances may an employee use both the contract grievance procedure and the Public Safety Civil Service Commission procedures relative to the same action. If both a grievance and an appeal to the Public Safety Civil Service Commission are filed, the City will send a notice of such dual filings by certified mail to the employee(s) and the Association. The Association will notify the City within fifteen (15) calendar days from receipt of the notice if it will use the grievance procedure. If no such notice is received by the City, the contractual grievance shall be deemed to be withdrawn.

### ARTICLE 17 - POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS

- The wide-ranging powers and duties given to the Police Department and its members involve them in all manner of contacts and relationships with the public. Of these contacts come many questions concerning the actions of members of the force. These questions often require immediate investigation by superior officers designated by the Chief of the Seattle Police Department. In an effort to insure that these investigations are conducted in a manner which is conducive to good order and discipline, the provisions of this Article shall be followed.
- 17.1.2 Internal investigation defined. For the purposes of this Article, the term "internal investigation" means an investigation by or under the authority of the Chief of Police of activities, circumstances or events pertaining to the conduct or acts of an employee. Such investigation shall be deemed a "criminal investigation" where it is suspected that such conduct or acts are or may be the basis for filing a criminal charge against the employee, and shall be deemed a "major investigation" where it is suspected that such conduct or acts may also or alternatively be the basis for discharge, suspension or other discipline of such officer.
- 17.1.3 Officer advised of alleged misconduct. Every officer who becomes the subject of an internal investigation shall be advised at the time of any interview in connection therewith that, as the case may be, he/she is suspected of:
  - 1. Committing a criminal offense;
  - Misconduct which would be grounds for termination, suspension or other disciplinary action; or that he/she may not be qualified for continued employment with the Police Department.

At the time of the interview such officer shall also be informed of the name of the officer in charge of the investigation and the name of the officer who will be conducting the interview.

- 17.1.4 Representation by counsel. Any employee who becomes the subject of a criminal investigation may have legal counsel present during all interviews of such employee. Such representation by counsel shall be confined to counseling and shall not be authority for any participation by counsel in the investigation.
- 47.1.5 Employee to be informed in writing-Recorded interviews. In the case of any major investigation and before any interview commences, the employee to be interviewed shall be informed in writing of the nature of the investigation including information.

necessary to reasonably apprise him/her of the allegations of any complaint and the employee shall be afforded an opportunity and facilities to contact and consult privately with an attorney of his/her own choosing before being interviewed.

Such employee may request that the interview be recorded, either mechanically or by a steriographer, and no questions shall be asked "off the record." Upon request, the officer under investigation shall be provided an exact copy of any written statement he/she has signed and a verbatim transcript of any interview of such employee.

- 17.1.6 Interviewing procedures. Interviews shall be held at a reasonable hour and preferably when the employee to be interviewed is on duty unless the exigencies of the interview dictate otherwise. Whenever possible interviews shall be scheduled during the normal work day of the City. Interviewing shall be completed within a reasonable time and shall be accomplished under circumstances devoid of intimidation or coercion. The employee being interviewed shall be entitled to such intermissions as he/she shall request for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, and rest periods. All interviewing shall be limited in scope to activities, circumstances or events which pertain to the conduct or acts of the employee under investigation that form or may form the basis for disciplinary action, termination of employment or the filing of a criminal charge.
- 17.1.7 Intimidation of employee prohibited. No employee under investigation shall be falsely threatened with dismissal or other disciplinary action should he/she refuse to resign, nor shall any employee be subjected to abusive or offensive language or in any other manner intimidated or offered promises or reward as an inducement to answer questions.

### ARTICLE 18 - CONFERENCE BOARD

- 18.1 There shall be a Police Department Conference Board consisting of three (3) employees named by the Association and three (3) representatives of the Department named by the Chief of Police. The Chief of Police, or his/her representative, shall sit as one of the three (3) Employer representatives to the maximum extent practicable, but any of the six (6) members may be replaced with an alternate from time to time. Either party may add additional members to its Conference Board committee whenever deemed appropriate. A representative of the City Personnel Department shall be requested to attend Conference Board meetings, and shall be provided an agenda in advance.
- The Conference Board shall meet on an ad hoc basis at the request of either party and shall consider and discuss matters of mutual concern pertaining to the improvement of the Police Department and the welfare of the employees.
- The purpose of the Conference Board is to deal with matters of general concern to members of the Department as opposed to individual complaints of employees and shall function in a consultive capacity to the Chief of Police.
- Either party may initiate discussion of any subject of a general nature affecting the operations of the Department or its employees. However, at any sessions which involve the interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement or any contemplated modifications thereof, the Director of Labor Relations and the President of the Association or their designees shall be in attendance and no such changes shall be made without the approval of same.
- An agenda describing the issue(s) to be discussed shall be prepared by the initiating party and distributed at least three (3) days in advance of each meeting. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit, restrict, or reduce the rights of the parties provided in this Agreement and by law.

### **ARTICLE 19 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT**

- 19.1 Except as otherwise herein provided, this Agreement shall become effective upon signing by both parties and shall remain in effect through December 31, 1997. Written notice of intent to amend or terminate this Agreement must be served by the requesting party upon the other party five (5) months prior to the submission of the City budget in the calendar year 1997 as stipulated in RCW 41,56,440.
- Any contract changes desired by either party must be included in the opening letter described in Section 19.1 and any modifications requested at a later date shall not be subject to negotiations unless mutually agreed upon by both parties.
- 19.3 Upon thirty (30) days advance written notification, the City may require that the Association meet for the purpose of negotiating amendments to this Agreement which relate to productivity improvements within the Police Department.
- The City reserves the right to reopen negotiations during the term of the agreement in order to collectively bargain over the topic of work schedule changes for patrol Lieutenants, if changes are made to the work schedules for police officers by agreement with the Seattle Police Officers' Guild. Negotiations shall be for the purpose of implementing the same work schedule changes under the same terms as reached with the Guild.
- Either party may reopen negotiations during the term of the agreement in order to collectively bargain over the topic of the impact of state and/or federal health care reform legislation, if the same is enacted. The parties agree that the intent of this agreement to negotiate shall not be to diminish existing benefit levels or to alter the premium sharing obligation of employees.

Signed this 28 day of APRIL, 1995.

SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

THE CITY OF SEATTLE Executed under authority of Ordinance 117595

President

Vice President

Secretary

### APPENDIX A - SALARIES

A.1 The classifications and corresponding rates of pay covered by this Agreement are as follows. Effective December 28, 1994, the base wage rates shall be increased by 3.5%, and by an additional 2.5% as an adjustment in recognition of the additional responsibilities being assumed by Lieutenants and Captains as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department. Said rates of pay are effective December 28, 1994, through December 26, 1995.

Police Lieutenant	\$5170	\$5382	\$5603
Police Captain	\$5940	\$6182	\$6437
Police Communications Director	\$5940	\$6182	\$6437
Police Major*	\$7104	\$7395	

- \* Effective March 21, 1995, the rank of Major will be eliminated and all Major positions will be abrogated as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department.
- A.2 Effective December 27, 1995, the base wage rates set forth in Section A.1 above shall be increased by one hundred percent (100%) of the percentage increase from July 1994 to July 1995 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 2% or greater than 7%. Longevity pay will be adjusted in accordance with the new salary schedule effective December 27, 1995.
- A.3 Effective January 8, 1997, the base wage rates set forth in Section A.1 as adjusted pursuant to Section A.2 above shall be increased by one hundred percent (100%) of the percentage increase from July 1995 to July 1996 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 2% or greater than 7%. Longevity pay will be adjusted in accordance with the new salary schedule effective January 8, 1997.
- A.4 In the event the "Consumer Price Index" becomes unavailable, the parties shall jointly request the Bureau of Labor Statistics to provide a comparable Index for the purposes of computing such increase, and if that is not satisfactory, the parties shall promptly undertake negotiations solely with respect to agreeing upon a substitute formula for determining a comparable adjustment.
- A.5 A salary premium based on five percent (5%) of their actual base wage rates shall be paid to Police Lieutenants assigned to the Bornb Squad while so assigned.

A.6 Effective December 28, 1994, an additional longevity premium of 5% upon completion of twenty-five (25) years of service will be established in recognition of the additional responsibilities being assumed by Lieutenants and Captains as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department. Longevity premiums based upon the top pay step of the classification Police Lieutenant shall be added to salaries in Section A.1, A.2 and A.3 during the life of this Agreement in accordance with the following schedules:

Longevity	<u>Percentage</u>	Monthly Equivalent in Dollars	
		Effective	
		<u>12/28/94</u>	
Completion of fifteen (15) years of service	3%	\$168	
Completion of twenty (20) years of service	<b>4</b> %	\$224	
Completion of twenty-five (25) years of service	5%	\$280	

- <u>A.7</u> Effective September 1, 1992, a salary premium based on three percent (3%) of their actual base wage rate shall be paid to Police Captains while assigned to the position of precinct commander.
- A.8 Gainsharing Program. At its option, the City and the Police Department may implement a gainsharing program during the term of this Agreement. If a gainsharing program is proposed that affects the general wage increase formula, reduces existing pay rates, or affects benefits or other terms and conditions in this agreement, implementation shall be subject to mutual agreement between the Association and the City/Police Department.

# FIRST-YEAR COSTS OF 3-YEAR SET7LEMENT WITH SPMA 1/1/95 - 12/31/95

Compensation Items	Total Annual Cost
Wages, Longevity & Specialty Pays	\$4,515,220
2.5% Across the board due to Reorganization and Longevity Pay, 5% @ 25 years	128,005
Cost of Change in Effe wive Date	3,300
Health Care	191.888
TOTAL	\$4,838,413*

<sup>\*</sup>Includes the cost of four Majors receiving a wage adjustment from 12/28/94 - 3/21/95 as well as all roll-up costs associated with pension and overtime.

Cit. rords,95\spancost wpd

### **AGREEMENT**

By and Between

THE CITY OF SEATTLE

and

SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

Effective through December 31, 49941997

# TICE: IF THE DOCUMENT IN THIS FRAME IS LESS CLEAR THAN THIS NOTICE IT IS DUE TO THE QUALITY OF THE DOCUMENT.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT	2
ARTICLE 2 - UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES	3
ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	5
ARTICLE 4 - SALARIES	10
ARTICLE 5 - HOLIDAYS	11
ARTICLE 6 - VACATIONS	12
ARTICLE 7 - PENSIONS	15
ARTICLE 8 - MEDICAL COVERAGE	16
ARTICLE 9 - DENTAL CARE	20
ARTICLE 10 - SICK LEAVE AND LONG TERM DISABILITY	21
ARTICLE 11 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	24
ARTICLE 12 - WORK STOPPAGES	25
ARTICLE 13 - SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT	26
ARTICLE 14 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	27
ARTICLE 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT	28
ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	29
ARTICLE 17 - POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS	33
ARTICLE 18 - CONFERENCE BOARD	35
ARTICLE 19 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT	36
ADDENDIX A _ SALARIES	4.8

### **AGREEMENT**

### BY AND BETWEEN

### THE CITY OF SEATTLE

AND

### SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

This Agreement is between the City of Seattle (hereinafter called the Employer or the City) and the Seattle Police Management Association (hereinafter called the Association) for the purpose of setting forth the wages, hours and other conditions of employment for those employees for whom the Association is the exclusive bargaining representative.

### ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT

- 1.1 The Employer recognizes the Seattle Police Management Association as the exclusive bargaining representative for the collective bargaining unit described in decision(s) emanating from Washington State Public Employment Relations Commission Case No. 1620-E-78-314.
- 1.1.2 Pursuant to Section 1.1 above, the classifications of employees covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement.
- 1.2 The elected President of the Association or his/her designated representatives are recognized by the Employer as official representatives of the Association empowered to act on behalf of members of the bargaining unit for negotiating with the Employer.
- 1.3 The President of the Association or his/her designated alternate shall be the liaison between the Association and the Seattle Police Department.
- 1.3.1 Upon sufficient notification the Employer shall grant the President of the Association or his/her designee a special leave of absence with pay to attend legislative hearings and/or conduct business for the Association to the extent that such leave does not interfere with the reasonable needs of the police department. The sum total of all such absences shall not exceed fifteer. (15) work days in any catendar year. The Association shall reimburse the Employer for the hourly rate of pay including any premium pay for such time said Association representative spends on special leave of absence.

### ARTICLE 2 - UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

2.1 Each regular full-time employee within the bargaining unit shall be required, as a condition of employment, to either join the Association or contribute an amount equivalent to the regular monthly dues of the Association to the Association or contribute a like amount to the Police Charity Fund. When contributed to the Police Charity Fund, the amount shall be reported monthly to the Association and the Employer by the Police Charity Organization.

Employees, by the above language, have the option of either:

- a. Joining the Seattle Police Management Association.
- b. Paying an amount equivalent to the regular dues to the Police Charity Fund.
- c. Paying an amount equivalent to the regular dues to the Association without any membership rights.
- d. Employees who satisfy the religious exemption requirements of RCW 41.56.122 shall contribute an amount equivalent to regular Association dues and initiation fees to a nonreligious charity or to another charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the employee affected and the bargaining representative to which such employee would otherwise pay the regular monthly dues.

The employee shall furnish written proof that such payment has been made. If the employee and the bargaining representative do not reach agreement on such matter, the Public Employment Relations Commission shall designate the charitable organization.

When an employee fails to fulfill the above obligation, the Association shall provide the employee and the Employer with thirty (30) days' written notification of the Association's intent to initiate discharge action, and during this period the employee may make restitution in the amount which is overdue. If the employee has not fulfilled the above obligation by the end of the Association's thirty (30) calendar day discharge notification period, the Association will thereafter notify the City Director of Labor Relations in writing, with a copy to the Chief of Police and employee, of such employee's failure to abide by Section 2.1. In this notice the Association will, if it is still seeking such, specifically request discharge of the employee for failure to abide by the terms of the labor agreement between the Employer and the Association, and the Employer shall effectuate the discharge.

2.2 Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of membership ir. or non-membership in the Association; provided, however, that this clause shall not restrict the Association from providing internal Association-sponsored benefits to Association members only.

- 2.3 The Employer agrees to deduct from the revcheck of each employee, who has so authorized it, the regular initiation fee, regular monthly dues and assessments uniformly required of members of the Association or amounts contributed to the Police Charity Fund in lieu of Association dues. The amounts deducted shall be transmitted twice each month to the Association on behalf of the employees involved. Authorization by the employee shall be on a form approved by the parties hereto and may be revoked by the employee upon request. The performance of this function is recognized as a service to the Association by the Employer.
- 2.4 It is the responsibility of the Association to notify employees of their options regarding association and/or membership. The Association will administer the provisions of this Article with regard to membership or association of employees in accord with its obligations under the k.w. Any disputes concerning the amount of dues or fees and/or the responsibility of the Association to the employees covered by this Agreement shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures set forth in this Agreement. The Association agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Employer from any and all liability resulting from the dues check-off eyetemarising out of this Article.

### **ARTICLE 3 - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES**

- 3.1 Selection of employees for the rank of Police Lieutenant or Police Captain shall be accomplished by the Employer in accordance with applicable rules established by the Public Safety Civil Service Commission for as long as the Commission has jurisdiction over such matter pursuant to City ordinance.
- 3.2 The rank of Police Major is exempt from the jurisdiction of the Public Safety Civil Service Commission and the creation and maintenance of such a rank shall be at the sole discretion of the Employer. When such a rank exists, selection of employees for the rank of Police Major shall be at the discretion of the Employer. Employees as selected shall serve at the sole pleasure of the Chief of Police, with the exception being that a reassignment in rank or disciplinary action taken as a result of misconduct must be for just cause.
- 3.3 Rehires. In the event an employee leaves the service of the Employer and within the next two years the Employer re-hires said former employee in the same classification to which assigned at date of termination, such employee shall be placed at the step in the salary range which he/she occupied at the time of the original termination. Such previous time worked shall be included for the purpose of determining eligibility for service steps.
- 3.4 Overtime and Executive Leave.
- 3.4.1 Lieutenants shall receive eight hours pay for their regularly scheduled eight hour day, which includes a one-half hour meal period and therefore constitutes seven and one-half hours worked. In the event a Lieutenant works through a meal period, the Lieutenant shall not receive additional compensation. Lieutenants shall receive additional compensation for work in excess of eight hours, excluding meal periods. Except as otherwise previded in Sections 3.4.2 and 3.4.3 Lieutenants (except those working a six (6) and two (2) schedule) shall either be (a) compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) or (b) provided with one and one-half (1½) hours off for each hour worked in excess of fortyeight (408) in a work-weekday, excluding meal periods when ordered by the Employer to-work-such hours.
- 3.4.2 The work period for Lieutenants werking a six (6) and two (2) schedule (6 days on and 2-days off) shall be the equivalent of eightyone hundred seventy-one (80171) hours biweekly on an annualized basisin a twenty-eight (28) day work period. Lieutenants working the cix (6) and two (2) schedule-shall either be (a) compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) or (b) provided with one and one-half (1½) hours off for each hour worked in excess of his/her regularly-scheduled six (6) one hundred seventy-one (171) in a twenty-eight (28) day work period-when ordered by the Employer to work such hours. The Employer shall not arbitrarily change nor reschedule furlough days in order to avoid the earning of overtime by Lieutenants who work the 6/2 schedule.

- 3.4.3 Effective May 1, 1987, Lieutenants who have worked overtime and are thereby eligible for overtime compensation will be allowed the choice of whether they will be a) compensated by a cash payment at the rate of time and one-half; or b) compensated by receiving additional paid leave at the rate of time and one-half for all <u>overtime</u> hours worked up to forty or in excess of ninety in a payroll year. The Department Bureau Commanders will have sole discretion in deciding to decide that the form of compensation due to Lieutenants eligible for overtime for all overtime hours worked from forty through ninety in a payroll year shall be a cash payment rather than additional paid leave.
- 3.4.4—Periods of work-beyond eight hours per day which are of less than one (1) hour duration or which are performed to complete or fulfill—the employee's regular—duties—may—not—be accumulated for compensation as overtime work or for time off as overtime work under Sections 3.4.1 and 3.4.2.
- 3.4.54 In the event Lieutenants are called back to work overtime which is not an extension either at the beginning or end of a normal shift, they will be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours at the time and one-half (1½) rate in the form of either a cash payment or time off. A shift extension is defined as reporting for duty within two (2) hours preceding or within one (1) hour following a Lieutenant's regularly scheduled shift.
- 3.4.95 Management employees of the rank of Police Captain and Police Major may be ordered by the Employer to work overtime and to be on standby although they will not receive and are not entitled to overtime and/or standby pay. In lieu thereof, each Captain will be granted fiftysixty four (5964) hours of noncumulative paid Executive Leave per calendar year, and each Major will be granted sixty (60) hours of noncumulative paid Executive Leave per calendar year. Such leave shall be available on January 1 of each year, provided that if an employee fails to remain employed throughout the calendar year, such leave shall be prorated. Each Captain will have the option of cashing out a maximum of ten (10) hours of Executive Leave each calendar year, and each Major will have the option of cashing out a maximum of twenty (20) hours of Executive Leave each calendar year; provided that the employee gives the Police Department notice by July 1 of each such year. Any such Executive Leave cashout will be paid on the first pay date in August of that calendar year.
- 3.4.76 Employees appointed (promoted) to the rank of Captain or Major after January 1 of any calendar year shall, for the calendar year in which appointed, only be entitled to a prorated share of fiftysixty-four (5064) hours of Executive Leave time for the rank of Captain and sixty (60) hours of Executive Leave time for the rank of Major based upon the number of full pay periods remaining in that calendar year. Such prorated share shall accrue immediately upon appointment.
- 3.4.87 Use of Executive Leave shall be accomplished in the same manner as vacation leave or in accordance with specific policies promulgated by the Seattle Police Department for use of Executive Leave. Such leave shall not accumulate from year to year. It must be used in the calendar year in which it is granted or else it will be lost.

3.5 The daily work hours of an employee may, upon direction from or with the concurrence of the Employer, be adjusted to accommodate the varying time demands of the activities for which the employee is responsible. For example, upon direction from or with the concurrence of the Employer, an employee may work ten (10) hours one day and six (6) hours the next day or six (6) days one week and four (4) days the following week or any other variation specifically approved by the Employer on a case-by-case basis.

### 3.6 Standby

- 3.6.1 Standby time shall be defined as that period of time during which an employee is required to remain in a state of readiness to respond to a summons to duty and for which discipline may attach for failure to respond. However, the issuance of a bell boy communicator to an employee does not constitute placing the employee on standby, and no employee shall be restricted in his or her movement or activities by the issuance of the communicator.
- 3.6.2 Lieutenants shall not be assigned off-duty standby time.
- 3.7 Whenever an employee is assigned for a period of two consecutive weeks or more by the Employer via written directive to perform all of the duties and accept all of the responsibility of a higher paid position normally filled by a superior police officer who is temporarily absent due to illness, vacation or travel on City business, he/she shall be paid at the first pay step of the higher position while continuously performing the work of the higher paid position. Opportunities for temporary work out-of-class for vacancies due to vacation, illness, leave of absence or similar circumstances in the following three positions may, at the Employer's discretion, be made available to any supervisory employee in the Police Department: Captain's position in the Records Division; Major's position in the Crime Prevention Division; and, Assistant Chief's position in the Administrative Services Bureau.
- 3.8 No employee shall be required to work without a firearm except when reasonably deemed necessary by the Employer to be in the best interest of the City.
- 3.9 The Employer's firearms policies as amended from time to time pertaining to uniformed officers of the rank of Police Officer and Sergeant shall also apply to employees covered by this Agreement.
- 3.10 Personnel Files. The personnel files are the property of the Employer. The Employer agrees that the contents of the personnel files shall be confidential and shall restrict the use of information in the files to internal use by the Employer or other police agencies, provided the Employer may release the personal photograph and biographical information to the public when an employee is promoted to any rank covered by this Agreement or is the recipient of a Commendation. This provision shall not restrict such information from being presented to any court or administrative tribunal.

- 3.11 In accordance with Ordinance 104526, as amended, it shall be a condition of employment that in the event there is made against an employee any claims and/or litigation arising from any conduct, acts or omissions of such employee in the scope and course of their City employment, the City Attorney of the City shall, at the request of or on behalf of said employee, investigate and defend such claims and/or litigation and, if a claim be deemed by the City Attorney a proper one or if judgment be rendered against such employee, said claim or judgment shall be paid by the City in accordance with procedures established by Ordinance 104526, as amended, for the settlement of claims and payment of judgments.
- 3.12 The Employer's False Arrest Insurance program as amended from time to time pertaining to uniformed officers of the rank of Police Officer and Sergeant shall also apply to employees covered by the Agreement.
- 3.13 Sickness/Serious Injury in the Famiry. In the event of a sudden, unexpected, disabling illness or injury to a member of the immediate family of an employee, said employee, upon approval of the Chief of Police or his/her designee, will be granted such release time as is reasonably necessary to stabilize the employee's family situation. The employee will, upon request, provide the necessary documentation to establish the nature and duration of the emergency.
- 3.14 The City shall offer a group Life Insurance option to eligible employees. The employee shall pay sixty percent (60%) of the monthly premium and the City shall pay forty percent (40%) of the monthly premium at a premium rate established by the City and the carrier. The City will offer an option for employees to purchase additional life insurance coverage for themselves and/or their families, at the employees' sole expense. The implementation of this new benefit will correspond with the implementation of the City's new HRIS system.
- 3.15 Clothing Allewance. Employees shall purchase clothing and equipment in accordance with department standards. Each employee shall be paid \$450.00 annually to cover the cost of replacement of said items. Effective September 1, 1990, the annual clothing allowance will increase to \$500.00 and effective September 1, 1991, it will increase to \$550.00. The anniversary date for payment of the annual clothing allowance shall be based upon one year intervals beginning with eighteen (18) months service from the employee's date of hire as a sworn police efficer with the Seattle Police Department.

The Employer agrees to provide a fund to repair or replace clothes or equipment damaged in the line of duty.

- 3.16 Effective upon the date of signing of this Agreement, employees who are authorized by the City to provide a personal automobile for use in City business shall be reimbursed for such use at the rate of twenty-eightnine cents (\$0.289) per mile.
- 3.16.1 The cents per mile mileage reimbursement rate cited above shall be adjusted annually, on January 15, to reflect the United States Internal Revenue Service audit rate then in effect

for purposes of United States Income Tax deductions for use of a privately owned automobile for business purposes.

- 3.17 Physical Fitness. All employees will be required to take current weight and blood pressure tests at least once a year.
- 3.18 Smoking Policy. All provisions of Ordinance #113836, pertaining to the Citywide smoking policy will be enforced as written.

## ARTICLE 4 - SALARIES

4.1 The Employer shall pay the salaries set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement.

### ARTICLE 5 - HOLIDAYS

- 5.1 Employees shall be allowed twelve (12) holidays off per year with pay, or twelve (12) days off in lieu thereof, at the discretion of the Chief of Police. A holiday shall be defined as commencing at 2000 hours on the day preceding the actual date of the holiday for those employees working a 6/2 schedule. A holiday shall be defined as the day of observance recognized by the City for those employees working a 5/2 schedule.
- a. The Employer and the Association agree that for Christmas and New Year's the holiday hours for Harbor and Communications shall commence at 1600 hours on the day preceding the actual holiday and end at 1600 hours on the day of the holiday; whereas for Homicide and Robbert the Christmas and New Year's holiday hours shall commence at 1600 hours on the day preceding the day of observance for the holiday which is recognized by the City and end at 1600 hours on the day of observance.
- 5.2 Employees who are regularly scheduled to work during the holiday time periods enumerated below shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-hal! (1½) times their regular hourly rate of pay for each hour worked during said period; provided, however, there shall be no pyramiding of the overtime and holiday premium pay.

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day (July 4)
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
The day immediately following Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

- 5.3 Whenever an employee has actually worked a holiday covered in Section 5.1 and the employee has not been given a day off with pay in lieu thereof and the employee is subsequently prevented from taking such a day off during that calendar your because of illness, injury or department work schedule, the employee may carry over to the next succeeding year such unused holiday time, or the Employer may compensate the employee at his/her straight time hourly rate for said holiday time.
- 5.4 Employees assigned to units that are traditionally closed or operate with a reduced Laff on the holidays may elect to work on those days but will not be entitled to the premium compensation set forth for the holidays enumerated in Section 5.2.

### ARTIC 6 - VACATIONS

- 6.1 Annual vacations with pay shall be granted to eligible employees computed at the rate shown in Section 6.3 for each hour on regular pay status as shown on the payroll, but not to exceed eighty (80) hours per pay period; except in the case of employees who work a site (6)/two (2) schedule whose work hours are equivalent to eighty (80) hours piweekly on an annualized basis.
- 6.2 "Regular pay status" is defined as regular straight-time hours of work plus paid time off such as vacation time and holiday time off. At the discretion of the Employer, up to one hundred and sixty (160) hours per calendar year of unpaid leave of absence may be included as service for purposes of accruing vacation.
- 6.3 The vacation accrual rate shall be determined in accordance with the rates set forth in Column No. 1. Column No. 2 depicts the corresponding equivalent annual vacation for a regular full-time employee. Column No. 3 depicts the maximum number of vacation hours that can be accrued and accumulated by an employee at any time.

COLUMN NO. 1		COLUMN	NO. 2		COLUMN NO. 3
COCOMIN NO. 1		EQUIVALENT ANNUAL		MAXIMUM	
			CATION FOR		VACATION
ACCRUAL RATE	Vacation	FIJLL-TI	MF EMPLOYEE		BALANGE
Hours on Regular	Earned	Years of	Working Days	(1.1)	(HOURS)
Pay Status	Pe: Hour	Service	Per Year	(Hours)	192
0 through 08320	0460			(95)	240
08321 through 18720			15	(120)	240 256
18721 through 29120		10 throug: 14	4 16	(128)	288
29121 through 39520		15 through 1	9 18	(144)	320
39521 through 41600	0769	20	20	(100)	
41601 through 43680	0807	21	21	(168)	336
43681 through 45760	.0846	22	22	(176)	352
45761 through 47840	0885	23	23	(184)	368
47841 through 49920	0923	24	24	(112)	384
49921 through 52000	0961	25	25	(200)	400
49921 Infough 92070	1000	26	?6	(205)	416
52001 through 54080	1038	27	27	(216)	432
54081 through 56160	1076	28	28	(224)	448
5617.1 through 18240	1016	29	29	(232)	464
58241 through 60320 60321 and ove:	1153	30	30	(240)	480
OUDZ Fand Over					_

6.4 An employee who is eligible for vacation benefits shall accrue vacation from the date of entering City service or the date upon which he/she became eligible and may accumulate a vacation balance which shall never exceed at any time two (2) times the number of annual vacation hours for which the employee is currently eligible. Accrual and accumulation of vacation time shall cease at the time an employee's vacation balance reaches the maximum balance allowed and shall not resume until the employee's vacation balance is below the maximum allowed.

- 6. s may, with Employer approval, use accumulated vacation with pay after comp. s thousand forty (1040) hours on regular pay status.
- 6.6 In the event that the Employer cancels an employee's already scheduled and approved vacation leaving no time to reschedule such vacation before the employee's maximum balance will be reached, the employee's vacation balance will be permitted to exceed the allowable maximum and the employee shall continue to accrue vacation for a period of up to three months if such exception is approved by both the Chief of Police and the Personnel Director in order to allow rescheduling of the employee's vacation. In such cases the Chief of Police shall provide the Personnel Director with the circumstances and reasons leading to the need for such an extension. No extension of this grace period will be allowed.
- 6.7 "Service year" is defined as the period of time between an employee's date of hire and the one-year anniversary date of the employee's date of hire or the period of time between any two consecutive anniversaries of the employee's date of hire thereafter.
- 6.8 The minimum vacation allowance to be taken by an employee shall be one-half (½) of a day or, at the discretion of the Chief of Police, such lesser fraction of a day as shall be approved by the Chief of Police.
- 6.9 An employee who retires or resigns or who is laid of after more than six (6) months service shall be paid in a lump sum for any unused vacation be/she has previously accrued.
- 6.9.1 "Resign" for purposes of this Section shall be defined as the employee giving two (2) weeks prior written notice of such intent to resign.
- 6.10 Upon the death of an employee in active service, pay shall be allowed for any vacation accrued prior to the death of such employee.
- 6.11 Except for family and medical leave granted pursuant to Ordinance 116761, aAn employee granted an exterided leave of absence which includes the next succeeding calendar year shall be paid in a lump sum for any unused vacation he/she has previously accrued or at the Employer's option, the employee shall be required to exhaust such vacation time before being separated from the payroll.
- 6.12 An emplo a lits or is dismissed for cause shall be paid in a lump sum for any vacation earner breceding year and not taken prior to separation from the City service, out not for the cut in year. An employee shall be considered to have quit, as opposed to resigned, when he/she gives less than two (2) calendar weeks' written notice to the City of the date of his/her voluntary termination of City employment.
- 6.13 Where an employee has exhausted his/her sick leave balance, the employee may use vacation for further leave for medical reasons only with prior approval of the Chief of Police.

In all other instances Except for family and medical leave granted pursuant to Ordinance \$16761, employees must use all accrued vacation prior to beginning a leave of absence.

<u>6.14</u> The Chief of Police shall arrange vacation time for employees on such schedules as will least interfere with the functions of the department but which accommodate the desires of the employees to the greates' degree feasible.

### **ARTICLE 7 - PENSIONS**

 $\overline{7.1}$  Pensions for employees and contributions to pension funds will be governed by the Washington State Statute in existence at the time.

### ARTICLE 8 - MEDICAL COVERAGE

- <u>8.1</u> Medical coverage shall be provided in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington, R.C.W. 41.20.120 and/or R.C.W. 41.26.150.
- 8.2 For employees covered by this Agreement who were hired before October 1, 1977, and are covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, the City will provide a medical care program, as established by the City, for the dependents of eligible employees pursuant to Ordinance 102498, as amended.
- 8.3 For employees covered by this Agreement who are not covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26 or who are hired on or after October 1, 1977, and who are not entitled to medical coverage under State Statute R.C.W. 41.26, the City shall provide a medical care program, as established by the City, for eligible employees and their eligible dependents. The age limit for eligible dependent children shall be twenty-one (21) years, or twenty-three (23) years, if enrolled in school full time.
- 8.4 For the calendar years 1992 and 1993 dDuring the term of this Agreement, the City chall pay not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the King County Medical Blue Shield Plan's 1995 monthly premium (or less than twelve times those 1995 monthly premiums on an annual basis) for the medical care programs, effective May 1, 1995, cited in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 8.7, now funded by the City. Any increase in the annualized total of monthly medical premiums over 1995 calendar year shall be the responsibility of the employee, in whole or in part, as led by Section 8.9. The maximum morthly medical premiums par covered employee, hading his/her dependents, the City will assume will be the premium rates established for each calendar year during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.5 For the calendar-year 1994 during the term of this Agreement, the City and employees that subscribe to the King County Medical Blue Plan will each pay fifty percent (50%) of any increase between the 1993 and 1994 monthly premiums for the medical care programs cited in Sections 8.2 and 8.3, now funded by the City.
- 8.6 For the calendar years 1992 and 1993 during the term of this Agreement, the City shall pay eighty percent (80%) of the Group Health Cooperative Plan's monthly premium and eighty percent (80%) of the Proving Health Plan's monthly premium for the medical care programs cited in Sections 8.2 and 8.3, now funded by the City. Employees that subscribe to the Group Health Cooperative Plan or to the Pacific Health Plan shall pay the remaining twenty percent (20%) of the monthly premium cost for each calendar year during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.75 Effective April 1, 1994, dDuring the term of this Agreement, the City shall pay not less than ninety percent (90%) of the Group Health Cooperative Plan's, ninety percent (90%) of the Options Plan's and ninety percent (90%) of the Pacific Health Plan's 1995 monthly premium (or less than twelve times 90% of those 1995 monthly premiums on an annual basis) for the

programs cited in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 8.6. Employees that subscribe to the Group Health Cooperative Plan, the Options Plan or to the Pacific Health Plan shall pay the remaining ten percent (10%) of the monthly premium cost, effective April 1, 1994, during the term of this Agreement. In addition, any increase in the annualized total of monthly medical premiums over the 1995 calendar year shall be the responsibility of the employee, in whole or in part, as provided by Section 8.9.

8.86 Effective April 1, 1994, Group Health Cooperative Plan and Pacific Health Plans subscribers willare required to pay a \$5.00 fee for each visit to a provider, a \$5.00 fee for each 30-day prescription drug supply and a \$50.00 fee for each emergency room visit. The City will provide a vision care benefit under the Group Health Cooperative Plan. Effective May 1, 1995, Options Plan subscribers are required to pay a \$7.00 fee for each visit to a provider for other than preventive care, a \$7.00 fee for each 30-day prescription drug supply and a \$50.00 fee for each emergency room visit. For care outside the Group Health network. Options Plan subscribers will be required to pay a deductible of \$150 per covered person per calendar year, with a family maximum of \$450. Benefits will be paid at 60% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$4,000 per person during each calendar year (an out-of-pocket coinsurance maximum of \$1,600 per individual and \$4,800 per family), then are paid at 100% of the usual, reasonable and customary charges for the remainder of the year.

8.9 The City will provide a vision care benefit under the Group Health Cooperative Insurance Plan. The City shall pay eighty percent (80%) of the additional cost for providing this benefit for the calendar years 1992 and 1993, and, effective April 1, 1994, ninety percent (90%) of the additional cost for providing this benefit for calendar year 1994. Employees that subscribe to the Group Health Cooperative Plan shall pay the remaining twenty percent (20%) of the additional cost for this benefit for the calendar years 1992 and 1993, and, effective April 1, 1994, shall pay the remaining ten percent (10%) of the additional cost of this benefit for calendar years 1994.

8.407 Effective May 1, 1995, (The King County Medical Blue Shield Plan shall consist of a samprehensive benefit plan structure preferred provider organization and a managed prescription drug program as follows:

- a. Lifetime maximum benefit: \$1,000,000
- b. For services received within the preferred provider network:

Benefits are paid at 80% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$2,000 per person during each calendar year; then are paid at 100% of usual and customary charges for the remainder c1 the year.

Chemical dependency and psychiatric treatment are as follows:

Chemical Dependency: Inpatient and outpatient: Paid at 80% to out-of-pocket limit, then paid at 100% to a maximum of \$10,000 every two calendar years; \$20,000 lifetime maximum.

Psychiatric Treatment: Inpatient: Paid at 80% to out-of-pocket limit, then paid at 100% to \$2,000 per year. Cutpatient: Paid at 50% to \$500 per year (does not accumulate toward out-of-pocket limit).

c. For services received outside the preferred provider network:

Benefits are paid at 60% of usual, reasonable and customary charges up to \$4,000 per person during each calendar year; then are paid at 100% of usual and customary charges for the remainder of the year.

- ed. Deductible for care provided within the preferred provider network: \$100 per covered person per calendar year. If three or more covered family members satisfy \$300 in eligible deductible expenses in a calendar year, no further deductible will be required from any family members during that calendar year. Deductible for care provided outside the preferred provider network: \$150 per covered person per calendar year and \$450 per family. The ceductible is payable by the employee before any benefits of the plan, as described above, are payable.
- de. The above medical plan will include vision care and chiropractic care.
- f. Chemical dependency and psychiatric treatment are as follows:

Chemical Dependency: Inpatient and outpatient: Paid at 80% to out-of-pocket limit, then

paid at 100% to a maximum of \$10,000 every two calendar

years; \$20,000 lifetime maximum.

Psychiatric Treatment: Inpatient: Paid at 80% to out-of-pocket limit, then paid at 100%

to \$2,000 per year. Outpatient: Paid at 50% to \$500 per year

(does not accumulate toward out-of-pocket limit).

g. Prescription drug purchases of a 34-day or 100-unit supply from designated participating pharmacies will be subject to an \$8 copay, and prescription drug purchases of a 90-day supply from the designated mail order pharmacy will be subject to a \$16 copay.

8.418 The City has the right to continue its comprehensive utilization review program under the King County Medical Blue Shield Plan. The program may include but not be limited to the following elements:

Pre-admission notification and review. Mandatory outpatient surgery. Second surgical opinion. Continued stay review.
Catastrophic case management.
Discharge planning.

8.9 For the calendar years 1996 and 1997, during the term of this Agreement, employees shall pay 100% of the increase in the canualized total of nonthly medical premiums over the 1995 calendar year, up to a maximum of 10% per year, for any of the medical plans cited in Sections 8.6 and 8.7. Premium increases in excess of ten percent (10%) per year for any of the plans will be shared equally by the City and the employees. The employees' premium sharing obligation, if any shall be paid monthly.

8.1210 The health care programs cited in Section 8.28.6 and Section 8.38.7 above do not have to remain exactly the same as the programs in effect upon the effective date of this Agreement but the medical benefits shall remain substantially the same. The City may, at its discretion, change the insurance carrier for any of the medical benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan through another carrier. However, any contemplated modification(s) to the medical benefits afforded under the existing health care program(s) or a change in carrier(s) shall first be discussed with the Association. If a carrier is unable or unwilling to maintain a major benefit now covered under said plans, the parties to this Agreement shall enter immediate negotiations over selection of a new carrier and/or modification of the existing plan.

8.43.11 During the term of this Agreement, the Employer may eliminate the insurance carrier for any of the medical benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan either through self-insurance or a combination of self-insurance and carrier provided benefits provided such change maintains substantially the same level of medical benefits and is more cost effective. The Employer, at its discretion, may provide, and later discontinue if it deems appropriate, any other medical care options in addition to those cited in Sections 8.2, 8.3 and 8.98 6 and 8.7.

### ARTICLE 9 - DENTAL CARE

- 9.1 Dental Care. During the term of this Agreement, the Employer shall provide a Dental Care Program to all eligible employees and their dependents under conditions of the dental care contract between the Employer and Washington Dental Service which is applicable to employees covered by this Agreement and in effect upon the signing of this Agreement.
- 9.2 During calendar years 1992, 1993 and 19945, the Employer shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly premium for the dental care coverage cited in Section 9.1 above.
- 9.3 The maximum monthly dental care premiums per covered employ ses, including his/her dependents, the Employer shall assume shall be the premium rates established for the celendar years 1992, 1993 and 1994. For the calendar years 1996 and 1997, during the term of this Agreement, employees shall pay 100% of the increase in the annualized total of monthly dental care premiums over the 1995 calendar year, up to a maximum of 10% per year. Premium increases in excess of ten percent (10%) per year for any of the plans will be shared equally by the City and the employees. The employees' premium sharing obligation, if any, shall be paid monthly.
- 9.4 The dental care program cited in Section 9.1 above does not have to remain exactly the same as the program in effect upon the effective date of this Agreement but the dental benefits shall remain substantially the same. The Employer may, at its discretion, change the insurance carrier for the dental benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan through another carrier. However, any contemplated modification(s) to the dental benefits afforded under the existing dental care program or a change in carrier shall first be discussed with the Association. If a carrier is unable or unwilling to maintain a major benefit now covered under said plans, the parties to this Agreement shall enter immediate negotiations over selection of a new carrier and/or modification of the existing plan.
- 9.5 During the term of this Agreement, the Employer may eliminate the insurance carrier for ... dental benefits covered above and provide an alternative plan either through self-insurance or a combination of self-insurance and carrier provided benefits, provided such change maintains substantially the same level of dental benefits and is more cost effective. The Employer, at its discretion, may provide, and later discontinue if it deems appropriate, any other dental care options in addition to those cited in Section 9.1 above.
- 9.6 For calendar year 1994, tThe per person annual maximum benefit for the dental care coverage cited in Section 9.1 shall be \$1,000.

### ARTICLE 10 - SICK LEAVE AND LONG TERM DISABILITY

- 10.1 Employees covered by this Agreement who are not covered by State Statute R.C.W. 41.26 shall receive sick leave benefits provided to other City employees under Order ance 88522 as amended.
- 10.2 Employees covered by this Agreement hired on or after October 1, 1977, who are not entitled to disability leave under State Statute R.C.W. 41 26, shall be granted sick leave benefits as provided under Ordinance 88522, as amended. Effective October 1, 1989, upon retirement or death, twenty five percent (25%) of an employee's unused sick leave credit accumulation can be applied to the payment of health care premiums, or to a cash payment at the straight-time rate of pay of such employee in effect on the day prior to the employee's retirement.
- 10.3 Effective October 1, 1989, for employees covered by this Agreement who were hired on or after October 1, 1977, and who are not covered by State Statute RCW 41.26 for non-occupational disability leave, the City will make available a long term disability (LTD) program concerning non-occupational accidents or illnesses as established by the City.

The LTD program shall be provided via an insurance policy with Standard Insurance Company under Policy 441446, as amended effective October 1, 1989. However, it is understood that Policy 441446 or any alternative insurance policy is not part of this Agreement but that this Agreement only obligates the City to provide the major long term disability benefits covered by the initial policy. Any disagreement over the terms of such an insurance policy shall not be subject to the grisvance procedure contained herein, but such disagreement shall be subject to other remedies provided by law.

- 10.4 The LTD program cited in Section 10.3 above shall be a group plan requiring mandatory participation by all eligible employees. Each eligible employee's share of the cost shall be contributed through payroll deduction pursuant to authorization by the Seattle Police Management Association in its capacity as the representative of the affected employees.
- 10.5 Beginning with the premium payment for October 1989, the City's contribution toward the cost of the LTD program shall be thirty-two and one-half cents (\$.325) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. The eligible employees' share of the cost shall be ninety-four and or e-half cents (\$.945) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings.
- 10.6 Effective upon payment for the January 1990 premium, the eligible employees' share of the cost shall be sixty-three and one-half cents (\$.635) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. The City's share shall remain at thirty-two and one-half cents (\$.325) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings. Any subsequent increases to the LTD January 1990 premium rate of ninety-six cents (\$.96) per one hundred dollars (\$100) of insured earnings shall be paid by the eligible employees through the date payment is made to cover the premium due for the month of December 19947.

- 10.7 During the term of this Agreement, the City may, at its discretion, change or eliminate the insurance carrier for any of the long term disability benefits covered by Section 10.3 above and provide an alternative plan either through self insurance or another insurance carrier.
- 20.8 During the term of this Agreement, if the insurance carrier providing the LTD benefits covered by Section 10.3 above is unable or unwilling to continue to provide coverage or to maintain a major long term disability benefit in effect on October 1, 1989, the City shall have the option of 1) continuing the LTD program through self insurance, 2) changing insurance carriers, 3) officially reopening negotiations with the Association over whether or not to continue to provide LTD coverage and, if so, with what benefits or 4) continuing to provide LTD through the existing insurance carrier. If option number 3 is selected by the City, said negotiations shall commence no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the City has given the Association written notice of its intent to remagnified the LTD program cited in this Article.
- 10.9 The LTD benefits covered by Section 10.3 above do not have to remain exactly the same as the benefits in effect on October 1, 1989, and the language or any changes thereto in the insurance policy providing for long term disability benefits need not be negotiated with the Association; provided, however, the substance of the major long term disability benefits in effect as of October 1, 1989, shall remain substantially the same unless changed pursuant to Section 10.8, option 3, of this Article or future labor negotiations.
- 10.10 The LTD program as covered by Sections 70.3 through 10.9 of this Article and the City's obligation thereunder shall become null and void if 1) the state or federal government offers non-occupational disability coverage to affected employees or mandates that the City make available coverage for non-occupational disabilities or 2) the City and any police officers covered by the long term disability provisions under this Article are required to participate in the federal Social Security program.
- 10.11 Sick Leave Incentive. Effective January 1, 1990, employees covered by this Agreement, bired on or after Ociober 1, 1977, who are not entitled to disability leave under State Statute R.C.vV. 41.26, shall be eligible for the following sick leave incentive program:
- a. Employees who use no sick leave in a payroll year, shall have sixteen (16) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year, for example, employees who use no sick leave in the payroli year ending December 19, 1989, shall have sixteen (16) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for 1990;
- b. Employees who use two (2) days or less of sick leave in a payroll year, shall have twelve (12) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year;
- c. Employees who use four (4) days or less of sign leave in a payroll year, shall have eight (8) hours of additional sick leave credited to their account for the next year.

Such incentive sick leave shall be subject to all rules, regulations and restrictions as normally earned sick leave, except as provided below.

- d. Incentive sick leave may be used only after all regular sick leave has been used.
- e. Incentive sick leave may not be cashed out or applied to the payment of health care premiums pursuant to Section 10.2 above.
- f. If an employee is absent from work due to an on duty injury or illness or a leave of absence, for thirty (30) days or more, the amount of incentive sick leave that can be potentially earned will be proportionally reduced.

#### ARTICLE 11 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 11.1 The management of the City and the Grection of the work force are vested exclusively in the City, except as may be limited by an express provision of this Agreement. Without limitation, implied or otherwise, all matters not specifically and expressly covered by this Agreement shall be administered by the City in accordance with such policy or procedure as the City from time to time may determine.
- 11.2 Except where limited by an express provision of this Agreement, the City reserves the right to manage and operate the Police Department at its discretion. Examples of such rights include the right:
- a. To recruit, hire, assign, transfer or promote employees;
- b. Notwithstanding Article 3.2, to suspend, demote and/or discharge employees or take other disciplinary action with just cause;
- c. To determine the methods, processes, means and personnel necessary for providing police service, including the increase, or diminution, or change of operations, or police equipment, in whole or in part, including the introduction of any and all new, improved, automated methods or equipment, the assignment of employees to specific jobs, the determination of job content and/or job duties and the combination or consolidation of jobs;
- d. To determine work schedules and the location of departmental headquarters and facilities;
   and
- e. To control the departmental budget.
- 11.3 The City further reserves the right to take whatever actions are necessary in emergencies in order to assure the proper functioning of the department.

# ARTICLE 12 - WORK STOPPAGES

- 12.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give an employee the right to strike and no employee shall strike or refuse to perform his/her assigned duties to the best of his/her ability. The Association agrees that it will not cause, condone or engage in any strike, slowdown, sick-out or any other form of work stoppage or interference to the normal operation of municipal functions. Employees shall not cause, condone or engage in any strike, slowdown, sick-out or any other form of work stoppage or interference to the normal operation of municipal functions. Employees who engage in any of the foregoing actions shall be subject to such disciplinary actions as may be determined by the City, including but not limited to discharge and/or the recovery of any financial losses suffered by the City.
- 12.2 The Employer shall not engage in lockout.

# **ARTICLE 13 - SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT**

- 13.1 It is understood that the parties hereto and the employees of the City are governed by the provisions of applicable Federal Law and State Law. When any provisions thereof are in conflict with or are different from the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of said Federal Law and State Law are paramount and shall prevail.
- 13.2 It is also understood that the parties hereto and the elimployees of the City are governed by applicable City Ordinances, and said Ordinances are paramount except where they conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement, and except where, in the event of changes to the wages, hours or working conditions of employees covered by this Agreement, bargaining is required by chapter 41.56 RCW.

# ARTICLE 14 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

14.1 If any provision of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any Article should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations with respect to issues arising from such holding of invalidity or such restraint.

# **ARTICLE 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

- 15.1 The Agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and nothing shall add to or supersede any of its provisions, except by written agreement.
- 15.2 The parties acknowledge that each has had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any matter deemed a proper subject for collective bargaining. The results of the exercise of that right are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City and the Association for the duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly, agree to waive the right to oblige the other party to bargain with respect to any subject or matter whether or not specifically referred to or covered ingoverned by this Agreement, provided that the Association does not waive its right to obligate the City to bargain with respect to any changes proposed by the City in the wages, hours or working conditions of employees covered by this Agreement.

### ARTICLE 16 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 16.1 Any dispute between the Employer and the Association concerning the interpretation or claim of breach or violation of the express terms of this Agreement shall be deemed a grievance. Such a dispute shall be processed in accordance with this Article. Any other type of dispute between the parties as well as disputes involving: (1) Public Safety Civil Service Commission Rules or Regulations whether specified in this Agreement or not, if there be such, (2) a reassignment in rank from Major to Captain which was not the result of misconduct, and (3) Article 7 Pensions, shall not be subject to the procedure delineated in this Article.
- 16.2 A grievance as defined in Section 16.1 of this Article shall be processed in accordance with the following procedures:
- STEP 1. Any alleged grievance shall be submitted in writing to the Association by the aggrieved employee within fifteen (15) calendar days of the day the employee knew or should have known of the alleged contract violation. If the Association supports the grievance, it shall be reduced to written form by the Association, stating the section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, a detailed explanation of the grievance and the remedy sought. The written grievance shall be submitted to the aggrieved employee's commanding officer within thirty (30) calendar days of the alleged contract violation, with a copy to the aggrieved employee's Bureau Chief, the Chief of Administrative Services, the Police Department Director of Personnel and the City Director of Labor Relations.
- STEP 2. If the grievance is not resolved pursuant to Step 1 above, it shall be reduced to writing in the same manner described in Step 1. The Association shall forward the Step 2 grievance to the City Director of Labor Relations with a copy to the Chief of Police, the Chief of Administrative Services, the Police Department Director of Personnel and the Bureau Chief of the aggrieved employee within sixty (60) calendar days of the alleged contract violation. The Director of Labor Relations or his designee shall either investigate the grievance or convene a Grievance Board as described below. The Director of Labor Relations shall thereafter make a recommendation to the Chief of Police within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of the written grievance or the adjournment of the Grievance Board. The Chief of Police shall, within ten (10) working days thereafter, provide the Association with his/her written decision on the grievance with a copy to the City Director of Labor Relations. If a Grievance Board is convened by the Director of Labor Relations, it shall consist of:

Presiding Chairperson - City Director of Labor Relations or his/her designee.

Member - Chief of Police or his/her designee from within the Police Department.

Member - President of the Seattle Police Management Association or his/her designee within the Association.

STEP 3. If the contract grievance is not settled at Step 2, either the Association or the Employer may request the Washington State Public Employment Relations Commission to supply both parties with a list of five (5) qualified arbitrators. If no agreement is reached between the parties relative to the choice of an arbitrator from that list within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of said list, or the initiating party opts to bypass a PERC list of arbitrators, the contract grievance shall be referred to the American Arbitration Association for arbitration to be conducted under its voluntary labor arbitration regulations.

Referral to arbitration (PERC or AAA) must be made within thirty (30) calendar days after the decision in Step 2 and be accompanied by the following information:

- 1. Identification of the section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated.
- 2. Details or nature of the alleged violation.
- 3. Position of the party who is referring the grievance to arbitration.
- 4. Question(s) which the arbitrator is being asked to decide.
- 5. Remedy sought.
- 16.2.1 The parties agree to abide by the award made in connection with any arbitrable difference.
- 16.2.3 In connection with any arbitration proceeding held pursuant to this Agreement, it is understood as follows:
  - a. The Arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision that will add to, subtract from, alter, change or modify the terms of this Agreement, and his/her power shall be limited to interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement.
  - b. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the City, the Association and employees involved.
  - c. The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Association, and each party shall bear the cost of presenting its own case.
  - d. The arbitrator's decision shall be made in writing and shall be issued to the parties within thirty (30) days after the case is submitted to the arbitrator.

- e. Any arbitrator selected under Step 3 of this Article shall function pursuant to the voluntary labor arbitration regulations of the American Arbitration Association unless stipulated otherwise in writing by the parties of this Agreement.
- f. If the grievance is submitted to the American Arbitration Association, the arbitrator shall be selected from a list of five names obtained from the American Arbitration Association. If the Employer and the Association cannot agree on one arbitrator from said list, then each party will strike one name alternately, until only one name remains. The party to strike the first name will be determined by a coin toss.
- 16.3 The time for processing a grievance stipulated in Section 16.2 may be extended for stated periods of time by mutual written agreement between the Employer and the Association, and the parties to this Agreement may likewise. by mutual written agreement, waive any step or steps of Section 16.2.
- 16.4 Failure by an employee or the Association to comply with any time limitation of the procedure in this Article shall constitute withdrawal of the grievance. Failure by the Employer to comply with any time limitations of the procedure in this Article shall allow the Association to proceed to the next step without waiting for the Employer to reply at the previous step.
- 16.5 Grievance settlements shall not be made retroactive beyond the date of the occurrence or nonoccurrence upon which the grievance is based, that date being fifteen (15) or less days prior to the initial filing of the grievance.
- 16.6 If at any step in the grievance procedure the Employer's response is deemed unsatisfactory, the Association's reason(s) for nonacceptance must be presented in writing when, and if, the grievance is reinitiated at the next step of the grievance procedure.
- 16.7 A grievance decision at any step of the procedure in Section 16.2 of this Article shall not necessarily be conclusive nor set a precedent, with the exception of Step 3. A decision at Step 1 or 2 shall be subject to review and/or reversal by the Employer at any time; provided, however a decision at Step 2 shall not be reversed beyond ninety (90) calendar days after the issuance of the Step 2 decision. In case a decision is set aside as described in this Section, the ensuing grievance time limits shall become operative when the Association is notified of the reversal.
- 16.8 Employees will follow all written and verbal directives, even if such directives are allegedly in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 16.9 As an alternative to answering the Step 2 grievance or conducting an investigation or hearing at Step 2, the Director of Labor Relations after consultation with the Chief of Police may, in writing, refer the grievance back to the Association. The Association may then initiate Step 3 of this procedure within the time frames specified therein.

16.10 An employee must upon initiating objections relating to actions subject to appeal through both the contract grievance procedure or pertinent Public Safety Civil Service Commission appeal procedures use either the grievance procedure contained herein or pertinent procedures regarding such appeals to the Public Safety Civil Service Commission. Under no circumstances may an employee use both the contract grievance procedure and the Public Safety Civil Service Commission procedures relative to the same action. If both a grievance and an appeal to the Public Safety Civil Service Commission are filled, the City will send a notice of such dual fillings by certified mail to the employee(s) and the Association. The Association will notify the City within fifteen (15) calendar days from receipt of the notice if it will use the grievance procedure. If no such notice is received by the City, the contractual grievance shall be deemed to be withdrawn.

# ARTICLE 17 - POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS

- 17.1 The wide-ranging powers and duties given to the Police Department and its members involve them in all matther of contacts and relationships with the public. Of these contacts come many questions concerning the actions of members of the force. These questions often require immediate investigation by superior officers designated by the Chief of the Seattle Police Department. In an effort to insure that these investigations are conducted in a manner which is conducive to good order and discipline, the provisions of this Article shall be followed.
- 17.1.2 Internal investigation defined. For the purposes of this Article, the term "internal investigation" means an investigation by or under the authority of the Chief of Police of activities, circumstances or events pertaining to the conduct or acts of an employee. Such investigation shall be deemed a "criminal investigation" where it is suspected that such conduct or acts are or may be the basis for filing a criminal charge against the employee, and shall be deemed a "major investigation" where it is suspected that such conduct or acts may also or alternatively be the basis for discharge, suspension or other discipline of such officer.
- 17.1.3 Officer advised of alleged misconduct. Every officer who becomes the subject of an internal investigation shall be advised at the time of any interview in connection therewith that, as the case may be, he/she is suspected of:
- 1. Committing a criminal offense;
- 2. Misconduct which would be grounds for termination, suspension or other disciplinary action; or that he/she may not be qualified for continued employment with the Police Department.

At the time of the interview such officer shall also be informed of the name of the officer in charge of the investigation and the name of the officer who will be conducting the interview.

- 17.1.4 Representation by counsel. Any employee who becomes the subject of a criminal investigation may have legal counsel present during all interviews of such employed. Such representation by counsel shall be confined to counseling and shall not be authority for any participation by counsel in the investigation.
- 17.1.5 Employee to be informed in writing--Recorded interviews. In the case of any major investigation and before any interview commences, the employee to be interviewed shall be informed in writing of the nature of the investigation including information necessary to reasonably apprise him/her of the allegations of any complaint and the employee shall be afforded an opportunity and facilities to contact and consult privately with an attorney of his/her own choosing before being interviewed.

Such employee may request that the interview be recorded, either mechanically or by a stenographer, and no questions shall be asked "off the record." Upon request, the officer under

investigation shall be provided an exact copy of any written statement he/she has signed and a verbatim transcript of any interview of such employee.

- 17.1.6 Interviewing procedures. Interviews shall be held at a reasonable hour and preferable when the employee to be interviewed is on duty unless the exigencies of the interview dictate otherwise. Whenever possible interviews shall be scheduled during the normal work day of the City. Interviewing shall be completed within a reasonable time and shall be accomplished under circumstances devoid of intimidation or coercion. The employee being interviewed shall be entitled to such intermissions as he/she shall request for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, and rest periods. All interviewing shall be limited in scope to activities, circumstances or events which pertain to the conduct or acts of the employee under investigation that form or may form the basis for disciplinary action, termination of employment or the filing of a criminal charge.
- 17.1.7 Intimidation of employee prohibited. No employee under investigation shall be falsely threatened with dismissal or other disciplinary action should he/she refuse to resign, nor shall any employee be subjected to abusive or offensive language or in any other manner intimidated or offered promises or reward as an inducement to answer questions.

#### ARTICLE 18 - CONFERENCE BOARD

- 18.1 There shall be a Police Department Conference Board consisting of three (3) employees named by the Association and three (3) representatives of the Department named by the Chief of Police. The Chief of Police, or his/her representative, shall sit as one of the three (3) Employer representatives to the maximum extent practicable, but any of the six (6) members may be replaced with an alternate from time to time. Either party may add additional members to its Conference Board committee whenever deemed appropriate. A representative of the City Personnel Department shall be requested to attend Conference Board meetings, and shall be provided an agenda in advance.
- 18.2 The Conference Board shall meet on an ad hoc basis at the request of either party and shall consider and discuss matters of mutual concern pertaining to the improvement of the Police Department and the welfare of the employees.
- 18.3 The purpose of the Conference Board is to deal with matters of general concern to members of the Department as opposed to individual complaints of employees and shall function in a consulting papacity to the Chief of Police.
- 18.4 Either party may initiate discussion of any subject of a general nature affecting the operations of the Department or its employees. However, at any sessions which involve the interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement or any contemplated modifications thereof, the Director of Labor Relations and the President of the Association or their designees shall be in attendance and no such changes shall be made without the approval of same.
- 18.5 An agenda describing the issue(s) to be discussed shall be prepared by the initiating party and distributed at least three (3) days in advance of each meeting. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit, restrict, a reduce the rights of the parties provided in this Agreement and by Luw.

#### ARTICLE 19 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- 19.1 Except as otherwise herein provided, this Agreement shall become effective upon signing by both parties and shall remain in effect through December 31, 49941997. Written notice of intent to amend or terminate this Agreement must be served by the requesting party upon the other party five (5) nonths prior to the submission of the City budget in the calendar year 49941997 as stipulated in RCW 41.56.440.
- 19.2 Any contract changes desired by either party must be included in the opening letter described in Section 19.1 and any modifications requested at a later date shall not be subject to negotiations unless mutually agreed upon by both parties.
- 19.3 Upon thirty (30) days advance written notification, the City may require that the Association meet for the purpose of negotiating amendments to this Agreement which relate to productivity improvements within the Police Department.
- 19.4 The City reserves the right to reopen negotiations during the term of the agreement in order to collectively bargain over the topic of work schedule changes for patrol Lieutenants, if changes are made to the work schedules for police officers by agreement with the Seattle Police Officers' Guild. Negotiations shall be for the purpose of implementing the same work schedule changes under the same terms as reached with the Guild.
- 19.5 Either party may reopen negotiations during the term of the agreement in order to collectively bargain over the topic of the impact of state and/or federal health care reform legislation, if the same is enacted. The parties agree that the intent of this agreement to negotiate shall not be to diminish existing benefit levels or to after the premium sharing obligation of employees.

Signed this day of, 49941995	
SEATTLE POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	CITY OF SEATTLE Executed under the authority of Ordinance
President	Mayor

Vice	President		 
Sacr	atazu	 	 

# **APPENDIX A - SALARIES**

A.1 The classifications and corresponding rates of pay covered by this Agreement are as follows. Effective December 28, 1994, the base wage rates shall be increased by 3.5%, and by an additional 2.5% as an adjustment in recognition of the additional responsibilities being assumed by Lieutenants and Captains as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department. Said rates of pay are effective September 1, 1992 December 28, 1994, through December 31, 1992 December 26, 1995.

Police Lieutenant	\$4 <del>5</del> 105170	\$46965382	\$ <del>4891</del> 5503
Police Captain	\$ <del>5188</del> 5940	\$54016182	\$56266437
Police Communications Director	\$ <del>5188</del> 5940	\$54 <del>016</del> 182	\$56266437
Police Major*	\$ <del>6213</del> 7104	\$64 <del>6</del> 97395	

<sup>\*</sup> Effective March 21, 1995, the rank of Major will be eliminated and all Major positions will be abrogated as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department.

<u>A.2</u> Effective January 1, 1993, the base wage rates enumerated in Section A.1 shall be increased by four percent (4%). Longevity pay will be in accordance with the new salary schedule effective January 1, 1993.

Effective January 1, 1993, through December 31, 1993, the classifications and corresponding rates of pay-covered by this Agreement are as fellows.

Police Lieutenant	\$4690	\$4884	\$5987
Police-Captain	\$5396	\$5617	<del>\$585</del> 1
Police-Communications-Director	\$5396		\$5851
Police-Major-	\$6462	\$6728	

Effective January 1, 1994December 27, 1995, the base wage rates set forth in Section A.1 as adjusted pursuant to Section A.2 above shall be increased by ninetyone hundred percent (99100%) of the percentage increase from July 19924 to July 19935 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 32% or greater than 7%. Longevity pay will be adjusted in accordance with the new salary schedule effective January 1, 1994December 27, 1995.

Effective January 1, 1994, through December 31, 1994, the classifications and corresponding rates of pay covered by this Agreement, which reflect a 3% increase, are as follows:

Police Lieutenant	-\$4831	\$5031	<del>-\$5240</del>
Police Captain	\$5558	\$5786	<del>\$6027</del>
Police Communications Director	\$5558	-\$5786	<del>\$6027</del>
Polise Major	\$6656	<del>-\$6930</del>	

A.3 Effective January 1, 1994 January 8, 1997, the base wage rates set forth in Section A.1 as adjusted pursuant to Section A.2 above shall be increased by ninetyone hundred (90100%) of the percentage increase from July 19926 to July 19936 in the United States City Average Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (the U.S. CPI-W). The salary increase will in no case be less than 2% or greater than 7%. Longevity pay will be adjusted in accordance with the new salary schedule effective January 1, 1994 January 8, 1997.

A.4 In the event the "Consumer Price Index" becomes unavailable, the parties shall jointly request the Bureau of Labor Statistics to provide a comparable Index for the purposes of computing such increase, and if that is not satisfactory, the parties shall promptly undertake negotiations solely with respect to agreeing upon a substitute formula for determining a comparable adjustment.

A.5 A salary premium based on five percent (5%) of their actual base wage rates shall be paid to Police Lieutenants assigned to the Bomb Squad while so assigned.

A.6 Effective December 28, 1994, an additional longevity premium of 5% upon completion of twenty-five (25) years of service will be established in recognition of the additional responsibilities being assumed by Lieutenants and Captains as a result of the reorganization of the Police Department. Longevity premiums based upon the top pay step of the classification Police Lieutenant shall be added to salaries in Section A.1, A.2 and A.3 during the life of this Agreement in accordance with the following schedules:

Longevity	<u>Percentage</u>	Monthly Equivalent in Dollars	
		Effective <u>9/1/92</u> 12/28/94	Effective Effective1/1/931/1/94
Completion of fifteen (15) years of service	3%	\$147168	\$ <del>153\$157</del>
Completion of twenty (20)			

\$210

Completion of twenty-five (25)

years of service

5%

\$280

A.7 Effective September 1, 1992, a salary premium based on three percent (3%) of their actual base wage rate shall be paid to Police Captains while assigned to the position of precinct commander.

A.8 Gainsharing Program. At its option, the City and the Police Department may implement a gainsharing program during the term of this Agreement. If a gainsharing program is proposed that affects the general wage increase formula, reduces existing pay rates, or affects benefits or other terms and conditions in this agreement, implementation shall be subject to mutual agreement between the Association and the City/Police Department.

# City of Seattle Personnel Department

Norman B. Rice, Mayor

ชามมาโหนทองสมเด็จ



March 15, 1995

TO:

Seattle City Council

VIA: Mayor Norman B. Rice

ATTENTION:

Tom Tierney Budget Director

FROM:

Sarah Welch

Acting Personnel Director

SUBJECT:

Attached Proposed Ordinance Authorizing a Collective Bargaining Agreement with

the Seattle Police Management Association

The attached proposed ordinance authorizes a collective bargaining agreement effective through December 31, 1997, with the Seattle Police Management Association. This bargaining unit currently includes approximately 62 employees in the ranks of Police Lieutenant, Police Captain, and Police Maior.

The collective bargaining agreement includes the following provisions:

#### Wages

- A base wage increase of 3.5%, effective December 28, 1994, and a cost-of-living adjustment in the second and third years of the contract equal to 100% of the U.S. CPI-W (not less than 2% or more than 7%), to be effective December 27, 1995, and January 8, 1997, respectively.
- A base wage increase of 2.5%, in addition to the above increase, effective December 28, 1994, to compensate for additional duties resulting from the Police Department reorganization.
- An additional longevity step of 5%, at 25 years of service, effective December 28, 1994.

An eg vallemployment gyptic insv 19th Fleor Devair Potton Belich 240 Seppini Avenue Skattin, WA (1810), 1757

Seattle City Council March 15, 1995 Page 2

#### Overtime

- The contract is amended to provide that a Lieutenant's regularly scheduled day comprises seven and one-half hours worked, in recognition of the fact that it includes a one-half-hour meal period. Lieutenants will receive no additional compensation, unless they work beyond eight hours per day, excluding meal periods, at which time they will be compensated at the overtime rate of time and one-half.
- Overtime for Lieutenants will be subject to an FLSA overtime threshold of 17! hours in a 28-day work period.
- Captains will not receive overtime. However, executive leave for Captains will be increased from 50 hours to eight days (64 hours), with no increase in hours available to cash out.

# **Majors**

All Major positions will be abrogated effective March 21, 1995, to provide for implementation of the Police Department's reorganization plan. (This was authorized by a separate ordinance.)

#### Health Care

- The following changes are made to the King County Medical plan: adopt the King County Medical preferred provider program (PPO) and prescription drug plan; eliminate extended coverage for maternity and disability; add an age limit for dependent children of 21 years, or 23 years, if enrolled in school full time; maintain deductibles and coinsurance level within the PPO the same as the current plan, and cutside the PPO deductibles of \$150/\$450 and a coinsurance level at 60%, up to \$4,000.
- The Options plan is to be made available to employees as an additional plan, with ten percent premium sharing and copays of \$7 for each visit to a provider for other than preventive care, \$7 for each 30-day prescription drug supply, and \$50 for each emergency room visit. Deductibles and coinsurance levels for care outside of the Group Health network will be the same as for care outside the King County Medical PPO.
- The current Group Health Cooperative and Pacific Health Plans, which include ten
  percent premium sharing and 5-5-50 copays, are retained, as is the current dental plan
  coverage from Washington Dental Service.

Seattle City Council March 15, 1995 Page 3

The City will pay 100% of the monthly premiums of the above medical and dental plans for the first year, and will not pay less than those 1995 monthly premium rates (or less than 12 times those 1995 monthly premium rates on an annual basis) during the term of the agreement. In return for receipt of 100% of the cost-of-living adjustments for the second and third years of the contract, employees will be responsible for payment of any increase in monthly medical or dental premiums for any of the above plans, up to 10% per year. The responsibility for increases in premiums in excess of 10% will be shared equally by the City and employees.

## Contract Reopeners

- The contract provides a health care reform reopener for either party to negotiate the impact of same with no intention to diminish benefits or to alter the premium sharing obligation of employees.
- The City may reopen at its discretion, if changes are made to the work schedules for Guild members, to negotiate the same work schedule changes for patrol Lieutenants under the same terms reached with the SPOG.

#### **Jainsharing**

At its option, the City and the Police Department may implement a gainsharing program during the term of this agreement. If a gainsharing program is proposed that affects the general wage increase formula, reduces existing pay rates, or affects benefits or other terms and conditions in this agreement, implementation shall be subject to mutual agreement between the SPMA and the City/Police Department.

#### **Grievance Procedure**

An opportunity is provided for the SPMA to consider pursuing a grievance after an employee has filed an appeal to the Public Safety Civil Service Commission.

#### Other Changes

The subordination of agreement and entire agreement articles are amended to address concerns raised by the SPMA about their legality. The provision on union membership and dues is amended to provide that disputes regarding dues are not subject to the grievance process and that the SPMA will indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability arising out of the article.

Seattle City Council March 15, 1995 Page 4

# OTHER IMPORTANT ISSUES RESOLVED

Some important issues were dealt with and resolved in negotiations that are not the subject of specific contract language, including agreements that:

- The reorganication plan may be implemented, without objection from SPMA.
- The SPMA President will sign the Memorandum of Understanding on Employee Involvement Committees developed through the Task Force on Service Delivery Efficiencies.
- The Department may implement a revised disciplinary process, without objection from the SPMA.
- The Department w implement a revised standby duty schedule for SPMA members.

# NONREPRESENTED POSITIONS/ASSIGNMENTS LINKED TO SPMA

Historically, the City has extended certain SPMA settlement terms relating to wages, health care, and other working conditions to two job titles excluded from the bargaining unit because of the confidential nature of the assignments. These are Administrative Assistant to the Chief of Police (which may be filled by any rank through Police Captain but which is paid the same rate as Police Captain) and Police Major-Inspectional Services. The latter position will be abrogated together with the other Major positions, through a separate ordinance, effective March 21, 1995. Sections 2-7 of the proposed ordinance extend these provisions to the two nonrepresented employees in these job titles.

# COST IMPACT OF WAGE INCREASES

The total first year cost of all compensation items, including pension and overtime roll-up, is estimated at \$4,838,413.

Any questions you may have regarding the provisions of the new agreement with the Seattle Police Management Association may be addressed to Fred Treadwell (4-7871). Questions regarding this legislation may addressed to David Bracilano (4-7860).

Attachment

SW:dbm

Coulords.95 spin.acids.wpd

# TIME AND DATE STAMP

Im This	
FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT USE ONLY	
COMMITTEE(S) REFERRED TO:	
-	
-	
PRESIDEN'	T'S SIGNATURE

**SPONSORSHIP** 

NOTICE: IF THE CONTROL THIS TRAME IS LESS CLEAR THAN THIS NOTICE IT IS DUE TO THE QUALITY OF THE DOCUMENT.

City of Seattle

Executive Department—Office of Management and Planning
Thomas M. Tierney, Director

95 MAR 21 PH 3:

Thomas M. Tierney, Director vorman B. Rice, Mayor

SEATTLE CITY ATTORNEY

March 17, 1995

The Honorable Mark Sidran City Attorney City of Seattle

Dear Mr. Sidran:

The Mayor is proposing to the City Council that the enclosed legislation be adopted.

**REQUESTING** DEPARTMENT

Personnel

SUBJECT:

AN ORDINANCE authorizing a collective bargaining agreement between The City of Seattle and Seattle Police Management Association, effective through Fecember 31, 1997; fixing compensation and providing certain conditions of employment for certain positions and assignments in the Seattle Police Department; superseding inconsistent ordinances, and providing payment therefor.

Pursuant to the City Council's S.O.P. 100-014, the Executive Department is forwarding this request for legislation to your office for review and drafting.

After reviewing this request and any necessary redrafting of the enclosed legislation, return the legislation to OMP. Any specific questions regarding the legislation can be directed to Sherry Johnson at 684-8084.

Sincerely,

Norman B. Rice

Mayor

Tom Tierney, Director

legis:john31

Enclosure

cc: Director, Personnel

Accommodations for people with disacrities provided on request. An equit employment opportunity, all mative action employr Office of Management and Planning 500 Municipal Builting Swatter Washington 98104 1424 (209-634 938) (TDD) 684-8118